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5 year track record
FY11 FY10 FY09 FY08 FY07

Profit & Loss Account

Sales 85138 58991 55602 38211 32271

Other Income 287 303 341 461 104

PBDIT 11700 8574 6400 5402 5009

PBIT 9521 6849 4931 4201 3903

Interest 1949 1247 1726 837 710

Profit Before Taxation 7572 5602 3205 3364 3193

Profit After Taxation 6152 4036 2672 2640 2524

Basic Earning Per Share of Rs.l 0 # 34.70 23.56 15.60 15.41 14.74

Dividend Per Share of Rs.l 0 # 5.00 4.00 2.50 2.50 2.50

Balance Sheet

Fixed Assets 22975 19935 15584 12545 11175

Investments 6527 4286 50 49 49

Foreign Currency Monetary Item 

Translation Difference Account 19

Net Current Assets 14186 9011 10305 8113 6843

43688 33232 25958 20707 18067

Equity Capital 1773 1773 856 856 856

Reserves & Surplus 18475 13503 10536 8336 6229

Loan Funds 21728 16135 12951 9966 9481

Deferred Tax Liability 1712 1821 1615 1549 1501

43688 33232 25958 20707 18067

#  Adjusted for bonus issue in FY10

PBIT as % of Sales 11.2 11.6 8.9 11.0 12.1

Fixed Assets Turnover (No.of times) 3.7 3.0 3.6 3.0 2.9

PAT/ Sales (%) 7.2 6.8 4.8 6.9 7.8

Return on Capital Employed (%) 24.8 23.1 21.0 21.7 22.0

Return on Net Worth (%) 34.6 30.3 26.0 32.4 41.7



P E R F O R M A N C E  T R E N D S
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85138
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Notice is hereby given tha t the Twenty Fifth Annua l General M ee ting o f Galaxy Surfactants Lim ited w ill be held on
Friday, the 9'" day o f September 2011 a t 3 .00 p.m . at the Registered O ffice  o f the Company at C - 49 /2 , TTC Industrial
Area, Pawne, Navi M um ba i -  400 703 to  transact the fo llow ing  business:

ORD INARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adop t the Aud ited Profit &  Loss A ccoun t fo r the year ended 31 “ M arch, 2011, the Balance 

Sheet as a t tha t date and the Reports o f the D irectors and Auditors.
2. To con firm  paym ent o f in te rim  d iv idend and declare a fina l d iv idend on equ ity  shares.
3. To appo in t a D irector in place o f Mr. Venkatesh Kasturirangan, w ho retires from  office by rotation and being eligible, 

offers h im self fo r re -appo in tm ent.
4. To ap po in t a D ire c to r in place o f Mr. Sudhir D Patil, w ho  retires from  o ffice  by ro ta tion  and be ing e lig ib le , offers 

him self fo r re -appo in tm ent.
5. To ap po in t a D ire c to r in place o f M r. Subodh S Nadkarn i, w ho  retires from  o ffice  by ro ta tion  and being elig ib le , 

offers h im self fo r re -appo in tm ent.
6. To appo in t M/s R D. Kunte & Co., Chartered Accountants (Registration N o .l 05479W ), the retiring Auditors w ho are 

elig ib le fo r re -appo in tm ent, as Statutory Auditors, to  hold office from  the conclusion o f this Annual General Meeting  
t ill the conclusion o f th e  nex tA nnua l General M eeting o fth e  Company and to au thorize the Board o f D irectors o f 
the com pany to  fix  the ir rem uneration .

SPECIAL BUSINESS
7. Payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors

(a) To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, w ith or w ithou t modifications, the follow ing resolution as a Special Resolution: 
"RESOLVED THAT sub ject to  the provisions o fth e  Sections 198, 309, and o the r app licab le  provisions o fth e  
Companies Act, 1956 read w ith  A rtic le  131 o f the Articles o f Association o f the Company and also subject to  
such approvals as may be necessary, the approval o f the shareholders is hereby accorded to the payment o f such 
comm ission to  the Non-Executive D irectors o f the Company as may be decided by the Board o f D irectors o f 
the Company PROVIDED HOWEVER THAT the aggregate commission so payable to all the Non-Executive Directors 
o f the Com pany per annum  shall no t exceed 1 % o f the net profits o f the Company calculated in accordance  
w ith  the provisions o f Section 309 (4) and Section 309 (5) and o ther applicab le provisions o f the Companies  
Act, 1956.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the com m ission am oun t and the structure o f paym en t w ill be de te rm ined and 
reviewed by the Board of D irectors from  tim e to  tim e commensurate w ith  the prevalent best practices in terms 
o f rem unera ting Non-Executive D irectors adequately fo r the tim e and con tribu tion  made by them . 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the comm ission as stated above is payable in add ition  to the sitting fees payable 
to  the Non-Executive D irectors fo r attending the meetings o f the Board o f D irectors/its Comm ittees and shall 
be payable for a period o f three accounting years starting from the 1 “  o f April, 2011 and ending w ith 31 “  March, 2014  
and w ill cover new  appo in tm ents in such capacity on the Board o fth e  Company, du ring  the said period. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the commission as stated above shall be payable only afterthe payment o f commission 
to  the Executive D irectors o f th e  Company.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board o f D irectors o f the Company, o r Comm ittee o f D irectors thereof be and 
are hereby authorised to take all steps as may be necessary, proper or exped ient to  give effect to this resolution."

(b) To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, w ith or w ithou t modifications, the fo llow ing resolution as a Special Resolution
"RESOLVED THAT the resolutions fo r paym en t o f comm ission to  the N on - Executive D irectors passed at the  
Annual Ceneral Meetings held on 29“ June, 2007 and on 24“  July, 2010 be and are hereby approved and ratified 
as Special Resolutions and the said commissions be and are hereby de te rm ined to  be paid fo r the respective 
years for wh ich those resolutions were passed and those resolutions be and are hereby now  considered as Special 
Resolutions fo r all purpose intends.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board o f Directors o fthe  Company, or Comm ittee o f Directors thereof be and are 
hereby authorised to take all steps as may be necessary, proper o r exped ien t to  give e ffect to  this resolution."

8. B o rrow ing  Powers
To Consider and, if thought fit, to  pass w ith or w ithou t modifications, the fo llow ing resolution as an O rd ina ry  Resolution;
"RESOLVED THAT pursuan tto  section 293(1 )(d) and other applicable provisions, if any, o fth e  CompaniesAct, 1956, 
the consent o f the Com pany be and is hereby accorded to  the Board o f D irectors o f the Company, a t any tim e or 
from  tim e  to  tim e , to  bo rrow  monies, w h ich  toge the r w ith  the monies already bo rrow ed by the Com pany (apart 
from  tem pora ry  loans ob ta ined from  the Company 's Bankers in the ord inary course o f business) may exceed the  
aggregate fo r the tim e being o f the paid up share capital o f the Company and its free reserves, tha t is to  say, reserves 
no t set apart fo r any specific purpose, prov ided th a tth e  tota l am oun t o f monies so borrowed by the Board shall not 
at all tim e  exceed the lim it o f Rs. 1 ,000 Crores (Rupees O ne  thousand  crores).
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT fo r th e  purpose o f giving effect to  this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to  do  all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper o r desirable  
and to  settle any question, d iff icu lty  o r doub t tha t may arise in this regard and sub delegate its powers to  Comm ittee  
o f D irectors and/ o r D irec to r and also to finalise and execute all such documents, deeds and writings, if any, as may 
be necessary, desirable o r exped ien t as it may deem fit."

9. C rea tion  o f  Charges
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass w ith or w ithou t modifications, the fo llow ing resolution as an O rd ina ry  Resolution: 
"RESOLVED THAT the consent o fthe  Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board o f Directors o fthe  Company in 
terms o f Section 293(1 )(a) and o ther applicab le provisions, if any, o f the Companies Act, 1956, to  the creation o f 
such mortgages, charges and hypotheca tions in add itions to  the existing mortgages, charges and hypothecations  
created by the Company in such a form  and manner as the Board o f Directors may approve on such o f the Company's  
movable and im m ovab le Properties, both present and fu ture , and in such m anner as the Board may feel exped ient 
toge the r w ith  powers to  take ove r the m anagement and concern o f the Com pany in certa in events, in favour o f 
Financial Institu tions/ Banks and o ther Financing Agencies to  secure term  loans(long te rm / sho rtte rm ) and work ing  
capital loans o f an am oun t no t exceeding Rs.l ,000 crores (Rupees O ne thousand crores) together w ith  an interest 
the reon in respect o f loans/ borrow ings con trac ted / to  be con trac ted by the Com pany or arrangements entered  
in to /  to  be entered in to by the Company.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT fo r th e  purpose o f giving effect to  this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to  do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and also finalise and execute such docum ents and w ritings, if any as 
may be necessary as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper o r desirable and to settle any question, 
d ifficu lty  or doub t tha t may arise in this regard and sub delegate its powers to  Comm ittee o f D irectors and/ or D irector 
and also to  fina lise the term s and cond itions  o f th e  above -m en tioned  loans/ bo rrow ings and the docum ents fo r 
creating the aforesaid mortgages, charges and hypothecations."



10. A p p o in tm e n t and R em unera tion  o f  M r. V. K as tu rirangan, th e  D ire c to r o f th e  C om pany as 'Business A dv iso r ' 
by S ubs id ia ry  C om pany  -  Tri-K  Indus tr ie s  Inc  USA.
To consider and, if thought fit, to  pass, w ith  o r w ith ou t modifications, the fo llow ing resolution as a Special Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pu rsuan tto  the provisions o fth e  Sections 314 and o ther applicab le provisions o fth e  Companies  
Act, 1956 inc lud ing  any sta tutory modification(s) o r re -enactm ent the reo f fo r the tim e  being in force, and subject 
to  such o ther approvals as may be necessary, the approval o fth e  shareholders is hereby accorded to  the appo in tm ent 
of Mr. V  Kasturirangan, the Director o f this Company, as "Business Advisor" by its subsidiary Company, Tri-K Industries Inc., 
USA fo r a period o f 5 years w ith  effect from  1 “ July 2011 on the remuneration as set ou t in the Explanatory Statement.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board o f D irectors o fth e  Company be and is hereby authorized to  take all steps as 
may be necessary, proper or exped ien t to  give e ffect to  this reso lution and to  alter, revise, modify, vary such terms 
and conditions subject to  the limits stipulated in the  Explanatory Statement during the tenure o f the present appointment 
o f M r. V. Kasturirangan as "Business Advisor" to  Tri-K Industries Inc. USA, in c lud ing  rem unera tion payable to  him , 
w ith ou t fu rther approval o fth e  shareholders o fth e  Company bu t w ith  such other approvals, sanctions or permissions, 
if  any, requ ired fo r such revision in the remuneration etc."

Registered O ffice :
C -49/2, TTC Industria l Area, 
Pawne, Navi M um ba i - 400  703

By orde r o f the Board, 
For Galaxy Surfactants L im ited ,

Date: 8 *  July, 2011

Ganesh Kamath
Head- Resource M ob ilisa tion &  U tilisation Process &

Com pany Secretary
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E
NOTES:

1. A  SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO  ATTEND A N D  VOTE IS ENTITLED TO  APPO INT A  PROXY TO  ATTEND A N D  
O N  POLL TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AN D  THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A  SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY. 
THE PROXY FORM, IN ORDERTO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE LODGED W ITH  THE COMPANY AT ITS REGISTERED 
OFFICE NOT LATER THAN  FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

2. The Register o f M embers and the Share Transfer Books o fth e  Company w ill remain closed from  26*'’ August, 2011 
to  September, 2011 (both days inclusive) fo r the purpose o f de term in ing en titlem en t fo r the payment o f d iv idend  
fo r the year ended 31 “  M arch, 2011, if declared by the Company.

3. The d iv idend fo r the year ended 31 “ March, 2011, if declared a tthe  Annual General Meeting, w ill be payable, subject 
to  the provisions o f Section 206A and o ther applicable provisions o f the Companies Act, 1956, to  those Shareholders 
whose names appear on the Com pany 's Register o f Members as on the date o f the Annual General Meeting .

4. Pursuant to  the provisions o f Section 205A  (5) o f the Companies Act, 1956, the d iv idend declared and paid up to  
the year ended 2002-03 has been transferred to  Investor Education and Protection Fund. No cla im  up to  the above 
period shall lie e ither against the Company or against the said Fund.

5. The Members w ho  have no t ye t encashed the ir d iv idend warrants, if any, fo r the years 2003-04, 2004-05, 2005-06,
2006 -07 , 2007 -08 , 2008 -09 and 2009 -10  may cla im  the uncla im ed d iv idend d irec tly  from  the Company. For the  
in fo rm ation o f shareholders, the D iv idend declared fo r th e  yea rended 2003-04 is due to  be transferred to  Investor 
Education and Protection Fund during September, 2011.

6. Members are requested to forward all future correspondence relating to  investor relations to Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agent viz.. Link In tim e India Pvt. Ltd at the fo llow ing  address:
L in k In t im e  In d ia  Pvt. Ltd  
U n it :  G a laxy  S urfa c ta n ts  L im ite d ,
Build ing C -13, First Floor, Pannalal Silk M ill Com pound,
L.B.S. Road, Bhandup - West, M um ba i - 400  078  
Phone: 2596 3838, 2596 3857, Fax No. 2594 6969.
Email; m um ba i@ link in tim e.co .in
For any need the investors are requested to approach the Company on its email ID: investorservices@galaxysurfactants.com.

7. M em bers ho ld ing  shares in e le c tron ic  fo rm  are requested to  in tim a te  im m ed ia te ly  any change in the ir address or 
bank mandates to  th e ir Depos ito ry Participants w ith  w hom  they are m a in ta in ing the ir dem at accounts. Members  
ho ld ing shares in Physical form  are requested to  advice any change o f address immediate ly to  the Company/ Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link In tim e India Pvt. Ltd.

8. Members are requested to dematerialise the shares held by them in the Company. The ISIN number is INE600K01018.
9. Members are requested to  bring the ir copies o f the Annual Report at the meeting.
10. A ll docum ents re ferred to  in the accom panying No tice  and Explanatory S tatement are open fo r inspection a tth e  

Registered O ffice  o f th e  Company on all w ork ing  days, except Saturdays and Sundays between 11.00 a.m. and
1.00 p.m . up to  the date o f the Annua l General M eeting .

11. Shareholders desiring any in fo rm ation re lating to  the accounts are requested to  w rite  to  the Company at an early  
date so as to  enable the management to  keep the in fo rm ation ready.

Reg istered O ffice : By order o f the Board
C -49/2, TTC Industria l Area, For Galaxy Surfactants L im ited
Pawne, Navi M um ba i - 400 703

Ganesb Kamath
Head -  Resource M obilisa tion &  U tilisation Process & 

D ate : 8'" J u ly 2 011 Com pany Secretary

mailto:mumbai@linkintime.co.in
mailto:investorservices@galaxysurfactants.com
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E X P L A N A T O R Y  S T A T E M E N T  P U R S U A N T  T O  T H E  P R O V IS IO N S  O F  S E C T IO N  1 7 3 (2 ) O F  TH E  
C O M P A N IE S A C T , 1 9 5 6 ,

Item  No. 7 (a) &  7 (b)
Your Board is o fth e o p in io n  tha t Non-Executive D irectors need to  be fa irly  remunerated fo r the ir tim e and con tribu tion  
in the perfo rm ance o f the Company. Your C om pany benefits from  the ir professional expertise as independent 
professionals/business executives and through the ir invaluable experience in corporate excellence.
Your Board recommends th a tth e  Com pany con tinue to  pay comm ission to  the Non Executive D irectors on the Board 
o fth e  Com pany fo r a fu rthe r period o fth re e  years com m encing from  T 'A p r il 2011 to  3 T 'M a rc h  2014.
Your Board proposes to  pay to  the Non-Executive D irectors such remuneration as the Board o f D irectors may deem  
app rop ria te  w ith in  the overa ll l im it o f 1% o f the N e t Profits o f the Company, ca lcu la ted in accordance w ith  the  
provisions o f Section 309 (4) and Section 309(5) and o ther related provisions o f the Companies Act, 1956.
Your Board is o f the op in ion  tha t w ith in  the m aximum  perm issible lim its prescribed under the law, it should be able to  
structure, review  and de te rm ine the comm ission payable to  Non-Executive D irectors in line w ith  the ir respective 
con tribu tions and prevalent best corporate practices.
Payment o f such rem unera tion to  Non-Executive D irectors o f the Company requires the approval o f shareholders by 
way o f Special Resolution under section 309 and o ther related provisions o f the Companies Act, 1956.
Your Board also seeks the consent o f th e  shareholders to  approve and ratify the resolutions passed by the members at 
the ir meeting held on 29“  June, 2007 and on 24“  July, 2010 fo r paym ent o f such comm ission to  Non-Executive  
D irectors be considered as Special Resolutions from  the respective dates they were passed by the members and 
commissions paid there under be regarded as du ly paid fo r the respective years in w h ich  such payments were done.
The Board o f D irectors recommends the proposed resolution 7 (a) & 7 (b) fo r approval o f shareholders as Special 
Resolution.
Except the Non-Executive Directors on the Board viz., Mr. V. Kasturirangan, Mr. Subodh Nadkarni, Mr. M . C. Parameswaran, 
Mr. Sudhir D. Patil and Mr. S. Ravindranath, no o ther D irec to r is concerned o r interested in the proposed resolution.

Item  No. 8 &  9
By a resolution passed at the Twenty Th ird Annua l Ceneral M eeting held on 18 * July, 2009, consent was accorded to  
the Board o f D irectors o f the Com pany fo r bo rrow ing from  tim e to  tim e all such sums o f money as it may deem  
necessary, even if it is in excess o f th e  aggregate o fth e  paid up capital and free reserves o fth e  Company, provided the 
total am oun t does no t exceed Rupees Five Hundred Crores (apart from the temporary loans obtained from  the Company's  
Bankers in the o rd inary course o f business).
Consequent to  increase in vo lum e o f business activities as well as keeping in m ind the fu tu re  requ irem en t o f funds, the  
Company 's tota l borrow ings may exceed the aforesaid lim it. In v iew  o f the above, the present bo rrow ing lim it o f 
Rupees Five Hundred Crores may be inadequate. The consent o f the Com pany in Ceneral M eeting under Section 293
(1) (d) o f the Companies Act, 1956 is there fore being sought fo r increasing bo rrow ing lim it up to  a maxim um  lim it o f 
Rupees O ne Thousand Crores.
Further, in o rde r to  meet the requirements o f funds fo r financing o f capita l expend itu re /w o rk ing capital requirements  
and/o r general corporate needs, the Company has to  raise funds and/o r bo rrow  from  tim e to tim e in fu ture, the moneys 
from  Financial Institutions, Banks, Investment Institutions, M utual Funds, Bodies Corporate, Foreign Financial Institutions/ 
Banks, Ind ividua ls and /o r o ther Financing Agencies by way o f term  loans, both in rupee and foreign currency and/or 
Debentures, w h ich  are norm a lly secured by a mortgage/charge /hypo theca tions over the movable and immovable  
properties o f one o r more units o f the Company.
As the docum ents to  be executed fo r creation o f such mortgage/ charge/hypothecations from  tim e to  tim e to secure 
such borrow ings, may conta in the power to take over the m anagem ento fthe  Company in certa in events, it is necessary



E

fo r the shareholders to  pass a resolution under Section 293 (1) (a) o f the Companies Act, 1956 fo r creation o f mortgage/ 
charge/ hypothecations as set ou t in this resolution.
Hence, the Board o f D irectors recommends the resolution to  the shareholders fo r the ir approval. None o f the Directors  
o fth e  Com pany may be deemed to  be concerned o r interested in the said resolution.

Item  No. 10
Mr. V. Kasturirangan has been associated w ith  you r Com pany from  O ctober 2004 as Non-Executive D irec tor on its 
Board.
Mr. V. Kasturirangan is a B. Tech (Hons) in Chem ical Engineering from  IIT M um ba i and M BA from  IIM  Ahmedabad. He 
possesses extensive management experience w ith  m u ltina tiona l corporations in Personal & Hom e Care industry in the  
areas o f marketing , sales and strategy across m u ltip le  geographies. His expertise lies in bu ild ing  m arket presence, 
launching m ajor organizational initiatives, managing large-scale integrations, tu rna round strategies and sound business 
judgm en t in im p lem en ting  strategies to  im prove organizational performance.
The Com pany also has benefited from  his experience in pu tting through the recent acquis ition o f Tri-K Industries Inc., 
USA.
The Board o f D irectors o f Tri-K Industries Inc., USA acknowledges tha t the com pany has benefited from  the knowledge  
and expertise o f Mr. V. Kasturirangan since its acquisition on 1“  July, 2009 and has reviewed and revised his terms o f 
appo in tm en t as a Business Advisor w ith  e ffect from  1 “ July, 2011.
The revised princ ipa l terms o f appo in tm en t and remuneration o f Mr. V. Kasturirangan in Tri-K Industries Inc. USA are as 
fo llows:
1. The period o f appo in tm en t - 5 years w ith  e ffect from  1 “  July, 2011.
2. Remuneration o f USD 11 ,000 per month.
3. In add ition  to  the above rem uneration , M r. V. Kasturirangan shall be en titled to  the comm ission up to  5% o f profits  

before tax o f Tri-K Industries Inc. as may de term ined b y th e  Board o f D irectors o f Tri-K industries Inc. in accordance  
w ith  the app licab le Cenera lly Accepted Accounting Principles.

4. Reimbursement o f ou t-o f-pocke t expenses, on actual basis, incurred w ho lly  and exclusively fo r the business o f Tri-K 
Industries Inc. USA.

The rem unera tion payable as above is fo r professional services o f business advisory nature and hence falls outside the  
pu rv iew  o f the lim its prescribed fo r managerial rem uneration under section 309 o f the Companies Act, 1956. It is also 
clarified tha t this rem unera tion is over & above the comm ission payable to  Mr. V. Kasturirangan as a Non Executive 
D irec to r on the Board o f Calaxy Surfactants Ltd approved by the members v ide the ir Resolution dated 24 “  July, 2010.
The appo in tm en t and rem unera tion o f Mr. V. Kasturirangan payable by Tri-K Industries Inc. USA requires the approval 
o f shareholders by way o f Special Resolution under section 314 o f the Com pan iesAct, 1956.
Except Mr. V. Kasturirangan, no o ther d irec to r is interested in the proposed Resolution.
The copy o f the le tter o f appo in tm en t o f Mr. V. Kasturirangan as Business Advisor by Tri-K Industries Inc., USA is 
available fo r inspection o f th e  shareholders. Please refer to  the Notes under the accompanying Notice.

Reg istered O ffice : By o rde r o f the Board
C -49/2, TTC Industrial Area, For Galaxy Surfactants L im ited
Pawne, Navi M um ba i - 400 703

Ganesh Kamath
Head -  Resource M obilisa tion & U tilisation Process &

Com pany Secretary



D I R E C T O R S ' R E P O R T

TO  THE MEMBERS

Your D irectors have great pleasure in presenting the Twenty Fifth Annual Report together w ith  the Aud ited  Statements 
o f Accounts fo r the year ended M arch 31, 2011

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Particu la rs Stand A lone
Rs. in lakhs 

C onso lida ted
2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10

N e t Sales :
Domestic 39767.92 27262.05 39767.92 27262.05
Exports* 45370.18 31729.30 52974.21 37163.70
Tota l N e t Sales 85138.10 58991.35 92742.13 64425.75
P ro fit Befo re In te re s t &  D ep rec ia tio n 11700.33 8573.76 12326.62 8268.43
Less ; Interest & Finance Charges 1949.14 1247.30 1949.14 1247.30
Less ; Depreciation 2179.25 1724.06 2258.45 1785.22
P ro fit fo r  the  year Befo re Tax
Less : Provision fo r Taxation

7571.94 5602.40 8119.03 5235.91

- Curren t 1518.90 1363.40 1768.33 1437.08
- Deferred (109.31) 206.13 (129.11) 196.57
-P r io r  Year Tax Ad justm ent 10.22 (2.83) 10.33 (2.50)

N e t P ro fit a fte r Tax 6152.13 4035.70 6469.48 3604.76
Add/(Less); M ino rity  Interest Ad justm ent - - - 184.89
N e t P ro fit fo r  th e  year 6152.13 4035.70 6469.48 3789.65
Add : O pen ing  Balance in Profit & Loss A ccoun t 10622.92 7803.27 10393.29 7819.69
A m oun t available fo r appropria tions  
A pp ro p r ia tio n s

16775.05 11838.97 16862.77 11609.34

Transfer to  General Reserve 616.00 404.00 616.00 404.00
Interim  D iv idend Paid on Equity Shares 620.46 428.18 620.46 428.18
Proposed Final D iv idend on Equity Shares 265.91 265.91 265.91 265.91
Corporate D iv idend Tax paid on In terim  D iv idend 103.05 72.77 103.05 72.77
Provision fo r Corporate D iv idend Tax on Final D iv idend 43.14 45.19 43.14 45.19
Surplus carried to  Balance Sheet 
*includes deem ed exports

15126.49 10622.92 15214.21 10393.29

IN IT IAL PUBLIC OFFER (IPO)
D uring the year, you r Com pany made an In itia l Public O ffe r o f 59 ,30 ,000 equ ity  shares to  the Public being the  
m in im um  num ber o f shares tha t need to  be offered under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations to  secure listing o f the shares 
fo r trading in the secondary markets. The offer opened on 13'" May, 2011 and was scheduled to close on 19 ‘" May, 2011.
Despite the Public O ffe r receiving a high IPO grading o f 4/5 from  an independent agency like CRISIL and com m itm en t 
from  Anchor Investors, the response to  the O ffe r was no t encouraging due to  unfavourable m arket developments, 
particu larly in the prim ary market. Therefore, you r Com pany took  the decision to  w ithd raw  the O ffe r on 18'" May, 2011 
and in itia ted the re fund process. Your Company fe lt tha t it was an appropria te decision in the interest o f the existing 
shareholders as well as the po tentia l new  investors.
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The w ithd raw a l o f the Public O ffe r w ill no t affect the ongo ing expansions, as you r Com pany has tied up p ro ject funds  
w ith  In ternationa l Finance Corpora tion and Banks. Furthermore, the Com pany 's present financia l status w ill enable it 
to  fu lf ill the fu tu re  requ irements o f funds as and when the business opportun ities arise.

D IV IDEN D
Your Com pany has paid an in te rim  d iv idend o f 35% i.e. Rs 3 .50 per share in December 2010 (previous year 25% i.e. 
Rs 2.50 per share). Inc lud ing the d iv idend d is tribu tion tax, the tota l pay ou t fo r in te rim  d iv idend is Rs 7 ,23,50 ,850 /-.
Based on the Com pany 's performance, the D irectors are pleased to  recommend fo r the approval o f the members a 
fina l d iv idend o f 15% i.e., Rs 1.50 per share taking the tota l d iv idend fo r the year 2010-11 to  50% i.e. Rs 5.00 per share 
(previous year 40% i.e. Rs. 4 .00  per share). Inc lud ing the d iv idend d is tribu tion tax, the to ta l pay ou t fo r fina l d iv idend  
is Rs.3,09 ,04 ,799 /-.
The to ta l d iv idend pay ou t fo r the year inc lud ing the proposed fina l d iv idend w ill absorb Rs 10 ,32 ,55 ,649 /- inc lud ing  
d iv idend d is tribu tion  tax o f Rs.l ,46 ,18 ,769 /-

BUSINESS &  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The performance o f you r Company fo r the year is reflected by the fo llow ing  ratios:
M easure  /  Year Stand A lone  C onso lida ted

2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10
Net Sales C row th  {%) 44.32 6.10 43.95 15.87
PBDIT (% to  N e t Sales) 13.74 14.53 13.29 12.83
PBIT (% to  N et Sales) 11.18 11.61 10.86 10.06
PBT ( % to  N e t Sales) 8.89 9.50 8.75 8.13
PAT (% to  N et Sales ) 7.23 6.84 6.98 5.88
ROCE (%) 24.76 23.14 24.96 21.97
Return on N et W orth  (%) 34.64 30.27 36.61 28.61
D eb t : Equity Ratio 1.07 1.06 1.27 1.07
N et Curren t Assets (% to  Sales) 16.66 15.27 17.56 17.14
Earning Per Share (Rs.) 34.70 23.56 36.49 22.12
Cash Earning Per Share (Rs.) 46.38 34.83 48.51 33.69
Book Value Per Share (Rs.) 114.21 86.17 114.31 85.04

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
D uring the year, the global markets showed a m ixed scenario. The developed econom ies con tinued to  struggle to  
stabilize and stimulate the econom ic grow th indicators in the ir respective econom ies through quantita tive easing and 
fiscal support. The emerg ing econom ies con tinued to  show good grow th.
The state o f sovereign finance and the monetary policies fo llow ed by the developed econom ies had a bearing on the  
in te rna tiona l financia l and com m od ity  markets. The gush o f in ternational liq u id ity  released through quantita tive easing 
has started generating in fla tiona ry pressures and vo la tility  in the com m od ity  and currency markets o f th e  w orld . This 
called fo r navigation o f business through uncerta in markets.
Your Company is in the Personal and Hom e Care Ingredients Space, w h ich caters to  the da ily consum ption needs o fth e  
peop le and offers a stable business model. The strong business tha t you r Com pany enjoys in the emerging markets 
together w ith  the manufacturing locations adds acceleration to  the grow th mom entum .
The fo llow ing  highlights are no teworthy:
•  Sales during 2010-11 registered a grow th o f 44.32%  over previous year on a stand alone basis, comprising o f 21.95%  

vo lum e grow th and 22.37%  price grow th. The price grow th was p redom inan t in the second half re flecting a rise in 
the feed stock prices.

•  The P ro fit be fore Tax on stand a lone and conso lida ted basis, a t Rs. 7572 lakhs and Rs. 8119 lakhs respectively,
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grew better than the vo lume grow th reflecting im provem ent in product, customer and geography m ix o f incremental 
business grow th.

•  Tri-K Industries Inc., USA, a w ho lly  owned operating subsidiary, com ple ted the first fu ll year o f operations, post its 
acqu is ition on 1“ July, 2009 . This subsid iary is engaged in m anufactu ring o f prote ins and d is trib u tion  o f high end  
specia lty personal care ingredients. During the year:
a) The integration o f th e  subsidiary fo r its business, people and operations was com ple te and heartening.
b) W e have started to draw  on the customer, product and market synergies between the parent and the subsidiary.
c) The fu ll year conso lida ted sales (inc lud ing  M ayb rook Inc, a w ho lly  ow ned subsid iary o f Tri-K Industries Inc) 

w ere USD 19 .85 m illio n  (Rs.9045 lakhs ) w ith  a P ro fit be fore Tax o f USD 1.40 m illio n  (Rs.637 lakhs) and 
Profit after Tax o f USD 0.90 m illion  (Rs. 409 lakhs).

•  The investments o f abou t USD 25 m illion  in Phase 1 o f Egypt P ro ject and Rs. 7000 lakhs in Jhagadia, Gujarat, India, 
w h ich  w ou ld  start commercia l p roduc tion  in the second half o f the ensuing year 2011-12 w ou ld  set the stage fo r 
sustaining the m om entum  o f grow th by prov id ing oppo rtun ity  for:
a) Enhancing the pa rtic ipa tion in the emerg ing markets o f A frica, M idd le  East and Asia Pacific by reaching ou t to  

the regional and local customers in these markets.
b) Access the newer geographies o f Latin America, N orth America and Europe, given the reduced transit times  

and enhanced supply assurance.
c) Exploiting synergies from customer acquisitions and w iden ing the product offerings from the existing broad product 

basket w h ich  can cater to  a w ho le  range o f custom er requ irem en t fo r the Personal and Hom e Care Industry.
•  Pursuing the Consumer to Chem istry approach, you r Company has made sign ificant investments in infrastructure  

and bu ild ing organizational competencies to  increase the space o f its market partic ipation in the Personal and Home  
Care Ingredients Industry. The new  ingredients and form ula tions in the p ipe line , when ro lled out, should enable 
your Company leverage its customer relationships w ith  offerings o f these new ingredients and w ou ld  call for further 
investments to  pu t p roduc tion  facilities fo r the ir manufacture.

•  Your Com pany has incurred an expend itu re o f Rs. 619 lakhs on REACH registration fo r gaining enhanced access to  
the European U n ion  markets, where it is applicab le. The entire expend itu re has been charged to  the revenue of 
the cu rren t year.

•  Your Company is investing in enhancing the manufacturing facilities to cGMP standards for some ingredients to increase 
the size o f the m arket oppo rtun ity  and im prove the business mix.

F INANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Despite the vo la tile  cond itions in the global com m od ity  and currency markets, the business and trade structures 
fo llow ed  by you r Com pany has enabled it to  navigate the same and improve upon the profitab ility .
The fo llow ing  highlights are no teworthy:

The re turn on average capita l em p loyed (ROCE) on stand alone basis has im proved to  24 .76 % fo r the year from  
23.14 % in the previous year. O n a consolidated basis, the ROCE is 24.96%  fo r the reporting year.
During the year 2010-11, the Company has arranged project funds from International Financial Corporation Washington 
o f USD 12 m illion  fo r its Egypt Project.
The fund ing  fo r the cu rren t projects under im p lem en ta tion i.e. Phase I at Egypt invo lv ing a p ro ject cost o f USD 25 
m illion  and at jhagadia o f Rs. 7000 lakhs has been fu lly  tied up.
The increase in feed stock prices in the last quarter o f th e  financia l year has increased the am oun t locked up in the  
N et Curren t Assets o f the Com pany as at the year end.
The interest outgo has increased du ring  the year on account o f term  loans fo r projects, hedging costs o f ECB and 
higher fund ing  needs o f net curren t assets.
Your C om pany continues to  retain the investment grade rating conferred by CRISIL fo r its bank loan lim its as per 
the requ irements o f the Basel II norms, w h ich  enables you r Company to reduce the cost o f borrow ing .

SALES G R O W TH  &  C O M PO S IT IO N
•  The sales grow th is high on accoun t o f increase in feed stock prices. The g row th a ttribu tab le  to  grow th in selling  

prices is abou t 22.37% .
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•  O n  conso lida tion , the share o f in te rna tiona l sales increases from  53.3%  to  57.1 % on accoun t o f the sales o f US 
subsidiary com pany getting aggregated.

•  The m ajor green-fie ld expansions w h ich  w ou ld  go in to operations in the second half o f the financia l year 2011-12  
w ill enhance the revenue grow th prospects in the com ing years.

•  It has been you r Com pany 's endeavour to  grow  at a rate higher than the domestic grow th by seeking to  partic ipate  
in the g row th  o f the o the r em erg ing markets and increasing the range o f its offerings in the Personal and Home  
Care Ingredients Space.

Domest i c Sdlt's
In spite o f vo la tile  m arket conditions, India businessgrew very we ll. This was on a ccoun to f good p roduc t and customer 
mix. W e have reta ined ou r sign ificant market share in key p roduc t lines. During the year, ou r domestic sales has shown  
a grow th o f 45.9%  over previous year.
M ov ing  ahead, in 2011 -12 we are op tim is tic  o f m ain ta in ing ou r leadership position in the market. W e have embarked  
on expand ing ou r specia lty chem icals p roduc t po rtfo lio  in th e  com ing year.

Intcnidtiunal Sales
Your Company has recorded a grow th o f 43.0%  in International Business, acquired new customers and laid the foundation  
fo r im m ed ia te capacity u tiliza tion o f Egypt Plant, w h ich  w ill be operational du ring the second half o f 2011-12.
Your Com pany has scheduled launches o f new  Specialty Chemicals in the in te rnational market.

H U M A N  RESOURCES
W e firm ly  believe tha t the sustained business d iffe ren tia to r w ou ld  be peop le com petency and the ir passionate 
engagement.
To keep pace w ith  accelerated grow th trajectory, you r Company is focusing on nu rtu ring and deve lop ing ta len t pool, 
succession p lann ing and com petency bu ild ing  to sustain grow th.

QUALITY
Your C om pany firm ly  believes tha t qua lity  is all pervasive and is present in everyth ing we do. Hence, continuous  
im provem ent programmes are bu ilt in to the annual business and operating plans to sustain inheren t e ffic iency and 
competitiveness in value de live ry to the stake holders and the society.
Benchmarking is being pursued in all endeavours to  improve efficacy in use o f the resources and accomplish the  
deliverables.
D u rin g th e  year, you r Com pany partic ipated in "The Econom ic Times India M anufacturing Excellence Awards 2010" 
held in partnersh ip w ith  Frost & Sullivan and was awarded "C o ld  A w a rd " in "Process Sector" category fo r its Taloja site.

SAFETY, HEALTH &  ENVIRONMENT (SHE)
Your Com pany continues to  strengthen its efforts in capab ility  bu ild ing  through DuPont Safety practices and progress 
towards sustainable deve lopm en t w ith  new  initiatives.
Your Com pany continues to  look fo r new  opportun ities to  enhance health and safety tra in ing and awareness for 
employees and contractors.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
Your Com pany continues w ith  the themes o f Educare, Healthcare and Sociocare fo r its CSR activities w ith  increased 
focus du ring  the year.

FIXED DEPOSITS
Your C om pany 's fixed deposits are Rs.2392 .45 Lakhs w ith  846 fixed deposit holders at the end o f the year under 
review  as against Rs.2031.80 Lakhs last year. There are no overdue deposits as at 31“  March, 2011.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
D uring the year 2010 -11 , the Company continues to  have six w ho lly  owned subsidiaries w ith in  the de fin ition  of 
'subsid iary com pany ' under the Companies Act, 1956. There has been no add ition  o r de le tion .
The M in is try  o f Corporate Affairs, C overnm en t o f Ind ia v ide General C ircu lar No. 2/2011 bearing reference no. 5 /12/
2007 -C L-lll dated 8th February 2011 has issued a d irec tion under section 212 (8) o f the Companies Act, 1956 whereby  
a general exem ption has been extended from  taking p rio r approval from  the Central G overnm ent fo r no t publishing  
aud ited accounts o f each o f its subsidiary com pany in the annual report, subject to  certa in cond itions being complied  
w ith .
In com pliance w ith  the cond itions in this circular:
a) Your Board o f Directors at its meeting held on 28'” May, 2011 has passed a resolution consenting to avail such exemption  

and present in the annual repo rt the consolidated financia l statements o fy o u r Com pany and all its subsidiaries du ly  
aud ited by its sta tutory auditors.

b) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in strict compliance w ith the applicable Accounting Standards.
c) Annual Accounts o fthe  subsidiary companies and related detailed information w ill be made available to the shareholders 

o f the Com pany and its subsidiary companies seeking such in fo rm ation at any po in t o f tim e. The Annual Accounts  
o f the subsid iary com pan ies are available fo r inspection by any shareho lder in the corpora te  o ffice  o f the ho ld ing  
com pany and o fth e  subsidiary companies concerned. The Company w ill furnish details o f accounts o f subsidiaries 
to  any shareholder on demand.

d) Your Com pany has given the Indian Rupee equ iva lent o f the figures in foreign currency appearing in the accounts  
o f the subsid iary companies and the exchange rates app lied as on closing day o f the financia l year.

e) Your Company in the consolidated balance sheet has provided in formation in aggregate fo r each subsidiary inc lud ing  
subsid iary o f subsidiaries on matters covering (a) capita l (b) reserves (c) to ta l assets (d) to ta l liab ilities (e) details o f 
investments (except in case o f investment in the subsidiaries) (f) tu rnove r (g) p ro fit before taxation (h) provision for 
taxation (i) p ro fit after taxation (j) proposed d iv idend .

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AN D  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AN D  O U TG O  
As requ ired under the Companies (D isclosure o f Particulars in the Report o f Board o f D irectors) Rules, 1988, the  
particulars re lating to  "Conservation o f Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and ou tgo" are 
given as "Annexure -  A" and forms part o f this report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Inform ation as per Section 217(2A) o f th e  Com paniesAct, 1956, read w ith  the Companies (Particulars o f Employees) 
Rules, 1975 is given in 'Annexure -  B" and forms integral part o f this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year under review, fo llow ing  D irectors on the Board o f you r Com pany are liable to  re tire by ro ta tion :
•  Mr. V. Kasturirangan
•  Mr. Sudhir Patil
•  Mr. Subodh Nadkarni
The re tir ing D irectors o ffer themselves fo r re -appo in tm ent.
The Company has benefited from  the experience o f Mr. V. Kasturirangan in gu id ing and integrating the recent acquisition  
o f Tri-K Industries Inc., USA. The acquis ition has been pro fitab le and w ou ld  synerg izethe business opportun ities fo r the  
bene fit o f both the Companies.
Acknow ledg ing his con tribu tions, the Board o f D irectors o f Tri-K Industries Inc., USA has reviewed and revised his terms 
o f appo in tm en t as Business Advisor w ith  e ffect from  1“  July, 2011. The revised terms have been placed before the  
members as Special Business fo r the ir approval.
Your Company has proposed Special Resolution seeking you r approval fo r payment o f commission to the Non-Executive  
D irectors fo ra  period o f 3 years, w ith  effect from  1“  April, 2011. The comm ission am oun t and structure o f paym ent w ill
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be de te rm ined by the Board commensurate w ith  the best practices in terms o f remunerating Non-Executive Directors  
o f a com pany o f sim ilar size and w h ich  adequate ly compensates fo r the tim e and con tribu tion  made by the Non- 
Executive D irectors.
Your C om pany has fu rthe r proposed tha t the resolutions passed by the members at the ir meeting held on 29“  June, 
2007 and on 24“  July, 2010 for payment o f commission to  the Non-Executive Directors be approved as Special Resolutions 
from  the respective dates they were passed by the members and commissions paid there under be regarded as du ly  
paid fo r the respective years in w h ich  such payments were made.

AUD ITORS
M/s. R D. Kunte & Co (Regd.), Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Aud ito rs o f you r Com pany hold office un til the  
conclusion o f ensuing Annua l Cenera l M ee ting and are elig ib le fo r re -appo in tm ent.
The Com pany has received a le tter from  them  to  the e ffect tha t the ir appo in tm en t, if made, w ou ld  be w ith in  the  
prescribed lim its under Section 224(1 B), o f the Companies Act, 1956.
Your Board recommends the ir re -appo in tm ent.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to  requ irem ents o f Section 217{2AA) o f the Companies Act, 1956, you r D irectors con firm : -
1. tha t in the preparation o f the Annual Accounts, the applicab le accounting standards have been fo llowed ;
2. tha t they have selected such accounting policies and applied them  consistently and made judgments and estimates 

tha t are reasonable and p ruden t so as to  give a true and fa ir v iew  o f the state o f affairs o f you r Company at the end  
o fth e  financia l year ended 31“  March, 2011 and o fth e  p ro fit o f you r Company fo r tha t period;

3. tha t they have taken proper and suffic ien t care fo r the maintenance o f adequate accounting records in accordance  
w ith  the provis ions o f the Companies Act, 1956 fo r safeguarding the assets o f you r Com pany and fo r preventing  
and de tec ting fraud and o ther irregularities; and

4. tha t they have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

ACKNOW LEDGEMENT
Your D irectors w ish to  place on record the ir appreciation fo r the who lehearted and sincere co-opera tion your Company  
has received from  its Employees, Shareholders, Customers, Suppliers, Bankers, Financial Institu tions and various 
departments o f the Central and State Covernment.

For and on beha lf o f  the  Board

Mumbai U . Shekhar G. Ram akrishnan
July 8 ,2 011  Managing D irector D irector

Hom e & Personal Care (Global)



Annexu re  -  A
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLO GY ABSORPTION A N D  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &  
O U T G O  A N D  PARTICULARS UNDER SECTION 21 7(1 )(e ) O F  THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Your Company continues to  give high p rio rity  to  conservation o f energy on an ongoing hasisand has taken measures 
to  im prove opera ting  parameters vis-a-vis energy conservation possib ilities in the year unde r rev iew  by in itia ting  
the fo llow ing  steps:
• H orizon ta l dep lo ym en t o f processes and methods established in energy conservation arena in new  projects at 

Suez and Jhagadia. These inc lude utilis ing the heat o f reaction fo r generating steam o r heating requirements, 
use o fV F D  based pum p ing systems, exp lo iting  natural ligh t fo r ven tila tion  in process areas, use o f LED lightings.

■ Value Engineering through fu rthe r debo ttleneck ing  o f existing capacities.
■ Reduction o f waste and generation o f value through innovative engineering.
• W ater conservation is taken up at all fac ilities o f you r Company. E lim ina ting w a te r wastage th rough effective  

u tiliza tion  and recycling w a te r has been a key them e adop ted this year.
D isc losu res  o f  p a rtic u la rs  w ith  respec t to  conse rva tion  o f  energy: 
Power and Fuel C on sum p tion
(I) ELECTRICITY

a) Purchased:
Units in 1000 KW H  
Total am oun t (Rs. in Lakhs)
Rate/KW H (Rs.)

b) O w n  Genera tion (through Diesel Generator) :
Units in 1000 KW H
Total am oun t (Rs. in Lakhs)
Rate/KW H (Rs.)

(II) FUEL
a) L ight D iesel O il 

Q uan tity  in KL
Total Cost (Rs. in Lakhs)
Rate/KL (Rs.)

b) Furnace O il 
Q uan tity  in KL
Total Cost (Rs. in Lakhs)
Rate/KL (Rs.)

c) Coal 
Q uan tity  in MT
Total Cost (Rs. in Lakhs)
Rate/MT (Rs.)

(III) C O N S U M P T IO N  PER U N IT  OF PRODUCTS

2010-11

15768
944.71

5.99

10570
759.98

7.19

1078
474.33
43996

565
158.60
28088

3909
229.21

5864

2009-10

10669
601.58

5.64

9446
567.89

6.01

865
318.38
36796

596
143.37
24065

4472
256.92

5746

As there are no separate meters fo r d iffe ren t products, the product-w ise consum ption o f power is no t available.
B. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT A N D  TECHNOLO GY ABSORPTION  

Primary focus:
•  Develop high perform ing ingredients and blends/chassis fo r the Personal and Home Care industry using eco friendly  

and sustainable process in an innovative way.
•  C onduc t e fficacy testing o f Com pany 's  products to  establish perfo rm ance and func tiona lity  and com m unicate



the benefits to  the custom er w ith  substantiation.
•  Transfer techno logy to  com m erc ia l scale through process op tim iza tion  studies in the p ilo t p lan t w ith  m in im um  

am oun t o f waste generation.
•  Strive fo r excellence in surfactant science and technology through understanding o f structure-property relationships.
Achievements:
•  D eve loped com m erc ia l techno logy  fo r surfactant b lend concen tra te  fo r personal and body care app lica tions  

w ith  va lida tion  o f its m ildness benefits.
(Rs. in  Lakhs)

P a rticu la rs 2010-11 2009-10
Expenditu re on R & D 410.65 394.40

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS A N D  O U TG O

P articu la rs 2010-11
(Rs. in  Lakhs) 

2009-10
Total Foreign Exchange used and earned: 
a) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency:

Raw M ate ria l &  Packing M ateria l (C.I.F. Value) 22361.48 11653.46
Traded Goods 222.80 227.79
Capital Goods 255.09 672.51
Spares & others 41.24 175.32
Foreign Travel 55.99 59.26
Exports Commission 39.88 320.35
Professional Fees 49.23 94.90
Exhibitions, Subscription & Mem bersh ip , Training and Seminar 79.25 37.06
Interest & Processing Charges on Borrow ings 44.19 104.72
Advances, no longer recoverable - 407.55
REACH Registration Expenses 572.19 -
O thers 169.61 116.12

b) Earnings in Foreign Currency;
F.O.B. Value o f Exports 44195.78 30364.56
(This does no t inc lude exports to  Nepal, deemed exports)

For and on beha lf o f th e  Board

Mumbai 
July 8, 2011

U. Shekhar
Managing D irector

G . R am akrishnan
D irector
Hom e & Personal Care (Global)



o

5
©

*£
o
roQ.

O
r
Q.

E
o

occ
<

5a:
ooo
oo

oc
o
o
"SDO
Si

c

fl
V©inâ
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To the  M em be rs  o f
G A IA X Y  SURFACTANTS L IM ITED
1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet o f GALAXY SURFACTANTS LIMITED (the "Company") as at March 31,2011, 

and the related Profit and Loss Accoun t and Cash Flow Statement fo r the year ended on tha t date annexed thereto, 
which we have signed under reference to  this report. These financial statements are the responsibility o fthe  Company's  
Management. O u r responsib ility  is to  express an op in ion  on these financia l statements based on ou r audit.

2. W e conducted  ou r aud it in accordance w ith  the aud iting  standards genera lly accepted in India. Those Standards 
requ ire tha t we plan and perform  the aud it to  ob ta in reasonable assurance abou t w he the r the financia l statements 
are free o f materia l m isstatement. An aud it includes exam in ing , on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts  
and disclosures in the financ ia l statements. An a u d it also inc ludes assessing the accoun ting  p rinc ip les used and 
sign ifican t estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financia l sta tement presentation. 
We believe tha t ou r aud it provides a reasonable basis fo r ou r op in ion .

3. As requ ired by the Companies (Aud ito r's  Report) O rder, 2003, as am ended by the Companies (Aud itor's Report) 
(Amendment) Order, 2004 (together the "O rder"), issued by the Central Government o f India in terms o f sub-section 
(4A) o f Section 227 o f The Companies Act, 1956 o f Ind ia (the 'Act') and on the basis o f such checks o f the books 
and records o fth e  Company as we considered appropria te and according to  the in fo rm ation and explanations given 
to  us, we give in the Annexure a sta tement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 o f the O rder.

4. Further to  ou r com ments in the Annexure referred to  in paragraph 3 above, we repo rt that:
(a) W e have ob ta ined all the in fo rm a tion  and exp lanations w h ich , to  the best o f ou r know ledge and belief, were  

necessary fo r the purposes o f ou r aud it;
(b) In o u ro p in io n , p roper books o f account as requ ired by law have been kep t b y th e  Com pany so far as appears 

from  ou r exam ination o fth o se  books;
(c) The Balance Sheet, P rofit and Loss Accoun t and Cash Flow Statement dealt w ith  by this report are in agreement 

w ith  the books o f account;
(d) In ou r op in ion , the Balance Sheet, P ro fit and Loss Accoun t and Cash Flow S tatement dea lt w ith  by this Report 

com p ly  w ith  the A ccoun ting  Standards referred to  in sub-section (3C) o f Section 211 o f the Act;
(e) O n the basis o f w ritten  representations received from  the directors, as on March 31, 2011 and taken on record 

b y th e  Board o f D irectors, none o fth e  directors isd isqua iified  as on M arch 31, 2011 from  being appo in ted as 
a d ire c to r in terms o f clause (g) o f sub-section (1) o f Section 274 o f the Act;

fO As stated in no te  no. 6 o f  Schedule T, com m ission payable to  non executive directors is subject to  approval o f  
the shareholders.

(g) Subject to  o u r com m ents in para (f) above, in ou r op in ion  and to  the best o f ou r in fo rm a tion  and accord ing to  
the exp lanations given to  us, the said financia l statements together w ith  the notes the reon attached there to  
give the information required by the Act in the prescribed manner and in conform ity w ith the accounting principles 
genera lly accepted in Ind ia give a true and fa ir v iew :
(i) in the case o f the Balance Sheet, o f the state o f affairs o f the Com pany as a t M arch 31, 2011 ;
(ii) in the case o f the P rofit and Loss Accoun t, o f the p ro fit fo r the year ended on tha t date; and
(iii) in the case o f the Cash F low Statement, o f the cash flows fo r the year ended on tha t date.

For and on behalf o f 
P. D. Kun te &  Co. (Regd.)

Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: 105479W

D.P. Sapre



■
■

Referred to  in Paragraph 4 o f ou r R eport even da te to  the m em bers o f GALAXY SURFACTANTS L IM ITED  on the  
f in a n c ia l s ta tem en ts  fo r the  year ended 3 1 ' M arch , 2011.

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing fu ll particulars, inc lud ing quantita tive details and situation
o f fixed assets;

(b) In ou r op in ion  and accord ing to  the in fo rm ation and explanations given to us, the fixed assets o f the Company  
have been physica lly ve rified  by the m anagem ent du ring  the year. No m ateria l d iscrepancies be tween the  
book records and the physical inventory have been no ticed. In ou r op in ion , the frequency o f ve rifica tion is 
reasonable;

(c) In ou r o p in io n  and accord ing  to  the  in fo rm a tion  and exp lanations given to  us, substantial part o f fixed assets 
has no t been disposed o f by the Com pany du ring  the year.

2. (a) The inventory (excluding inventories w ith  th ird  parties) has been physically verified b y th e  management during
theyear. In respect o f inventory ly ing w ith  th ird  parties, these have substantia lly been con firm ed by them . In 
ou r op in ion , the frequency o f ve rifica tion  is reasonable;

(b) In o u ro p in io n , the procedures o f physical verification o f inventory fo llowed by the  management are reasonable 
and adequate in re la tion to the size o f the Com pany and the nature o f its business;

(c) O n  the basis o fo u r  exam ination o fth e  inven tory records, in ou r op in ion , the Com pany is m ain ta in ing proper 
records o f inventory. The discrepancies no ticed  on physical ve rif ica tion  o f inven to ry  as com pared to  book  
records were no t materia l.

3. (a) The Com pany has granted unsecured loan to  one party listed in the register m ain ta ined under Section 301 of
the Act. The m ax im um  am oun t outstand ing du ring  the year was Rs. 258.23 lac and the am oun t outstanding  
at the year-end was Rs. 158 .00 lac.

(b) The aforesaid unsecured loan is granted to  Galaxy Surfactants L im ited-Em ployees W elfare Trust, w h ich  has 
been settled by the  C om pany fo r the  bene fit o f its em p loyees. There are no o th e r term s and cond itions  
stipu la ted in respect o f the said loan. Acco rd ing ly sub clauses (b), (c) and (d) o f clause (iii) o f Paragraph 4 of 
the O rde r is no t app licab le to  the Company.

(c) The Company has taken unsecured loans from  22 parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 
o fth e  Act. The m axim um  am oun t ou tstanding at anytim e du ring  the year and the year-end balance o f such 
unsecured loans aggregates to  Rs. 765 .30 lac and Rs. 714 .00 lac respectively.

(d) In ou r op in ion , the rate o f interest and other terms and cond itions o f such loans are prima facie, no t prejudicia l 
to  the interests o f the Company.

(e) The Company is regular in repaym en to f the princ ipa l am oun t and payment o f interest in respect o f these loans.
4. In o u ro p in io n  and accord ing to  the in fo rm ation and exp lanations given to  us, there are adequate interna l contro l 

procedures commensurate w ith  the size o fth e  Company and the nature o f its business fo r th e  purchase o f inventory  
and fixed assets and fo r the sale o f goods. There are no sales o f services during the year under audit. Further, on the  
basis o f ou r exam ination o fth e  books o f account and records o fth e  Company and according to the in formation and 
explanations given to us, no major weakness have been noticed or reported in the aforesaid internal control procedures.

5. (a) In ou r op in ion based on aud it procedures applied by us and accord ing to  the information and explanations given
to us, the particulars o f contracts or arrangements referred to  in Section 301 o fth e  Act have been entered in the  
register requ ired to  be m ain ta ined under tha t section.
In ou rop in ion  and acco rd ing to the  information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance 
o f such contracts or arrangements and exceeding the value o f Rupees Five lac in respect o f any party during the  
year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices a tthe  relevant 
tim e .

6. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied w ith the provisions 
o f section 58A and  58AA o f th e  Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance o f Deposits) Ru es, 1975 
framed there under, w ith  regard to deposits accepted from  the public. Accord ing to the information and explanations  
given to  us, in this regard, no O rde r under the aforesaid sections has been passed by the Com pany Law Board or 
Nationa l C om pany Law Tribunal o r Reserve Bank o f India or any C ou rt o r any o ther Tribunal.

7. In ou r op in ion , the C om pany has an interna l aud it system commensurate w ith  its size and nature o f its business.

(b)



m

8. To the hest o f ou r knowledge and according to the information given to us, the Central Covernm ent has not prescribed 
maintenance o f cost records under section 209(1 )(d) o fthe  CompaniesAct, 1956 for any o fthe  products o fthe  Company.

9. (a) A cco rd ing  to  the in fo rm a tion  and exp lanations given to  us and the records o f the Com pany exam ined by us,
in ou r op in ion , the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues includ ing Provident 
Fund, Investor Education and Protection fund. Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, W ealth tax, Sales tax, 
Value added tax. Service tax, Customs duty, Excise du ty  Cess and o ther material sta tutory dues as applicab le  
w ith  the approp ria te  authorities. There are no dues in re lation to  these undisputed statutory dues outstanding  
at the year-end fo r a period exceeding six months from  the date they were payable.

(b) Acco rd ing  to  the in fo rm ation and exp lana tionsg iven to  us and the records o fth e  Com pany exam ined by us, 
the particulars o f dues o f income-tax, sales-tax, wea lth -tax, service-tax, customs duty, excise du ty  and cess as 
at M arch 31, 2011 , w h ich  have no t been deposited on account o f a dispute, are as fo llows:

N am e o f the  
sta tue

N a tu re  o f  
dues

Am ount 
d ispu ted  (Rs.)

Fo rum  w he re  d ispu te  
 is pend ing

Period to  w h ich  
d isp u te  re la te

The Central Excise and 
Salt Act, 1944 Excise Duty 1,17,516 Superin tendent o f Central 

Excise on remand by CESTAT 1990-91

10. The Com pany does no t have accum ulated losses as at M arch 31, 2011 and it has no t incurred any cash losses in 
the financ ia l year ended on tha t date o r in the im m ed ia te ly  preced ing financia i year.

11. Acco rd ing  to  the records o f the C om pany exam ined by us and the in fo rm ation and exp lanations given to  us, the  
Company has no t defaulted in repayment o f dues to any financial institutions or banks. The Company has not issued 
any debentures.

12. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis o f security by way o f pledge o f shares, debentures 
and o the r securities.

13. The Com pany is no t a ch it fund o r a n id h i/ mutual bene fit fund/society. Therefore provisions o f any special statute 
applicab le to ch it fund /  n idh i /m u tua l bene fit fund /societies are no t app licab le to  the Company.

14. As in fo rm ed to  us and accord ing to  the in fo rm a tion  and explanations given to us, the Com pany is no t a dealer or 
trade r in shares, securities, debentures and o ther investments.

15. In our opin ion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions o fthe  guarantees 
given by the Company in respect o f loans taken by who lly  owned subsidiary companies, are prima facie, not prejudicial 
to  the interests o f the Company.

16. In ou r op in io n , and accord ing to  the in fo rm ation and explanations given to  us, the term  loans have been applied  
fo r the purposes fo r w h ich  they were ob ta ined .

17. O n the basis o f an overall exam ination o f th e  balance sheet o f the Company, in ou r op in ion  and accord ing to the  
in fo rm a tion  and exp lanations given to  us, there are no funds raised on a short-term  basis w h ich  have been used 
fo r long-term  investment.

18. Accord ing to  the in fo rm ation and explanations given to us, the Company has no t made any preferential a llo tment o f 
shares to  parties and companies covered in the register m ain ta ined under Section 301 o f th e A c t d u rin g th e  year.

19. The Com pany has no t issued any debentures du ring  the year.
20. The Com pany has no t raised any money by way o f pub lic  issue du ring  the year.
21. D uring the course o f ou r exam ination o f the books and records o f the Company, carried ou t in accordance w ith  

the Cenera lly Accepted Aud itin g  Practices in India, and according to  the in fo rm ation and exp lana tionsg iven to  us, 
we have ne ither come across any instance o f fraud on or b y th e  Company, no ticed or reported du rin g the  year, nor 
have we been in fo rm ed o f such case by the management.

For and on beha lf o f  
RD. Kunte &  Co. (Regd.)

Chartered Accountants  
Firm Registration No.: 105479W

D.R Sapre
Partner

M em bersh ip  No. 40740



B A L A N C E  S H E E T

A S A T  31 ST M A R C H , 2 0 1 1

SCHEDULE
SOURCES OF FUNDS 
Shareholders' Funds

Capital A
Reserves & Surplus B

Loan Funds
Secured Loans C
Unsecured Loans D

Deferred Tax Liahility (N e t) E
T O T A L

APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
Fixed Assets

Gross B lock F
Less: Deprec ia tion  
N et B lock
Capital Work-in-Progress a t cost, inc lud ing  advances 
(Refer Note N o .7 o f Schedule "T " )

Investments G
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation 
Difference Account 
Current Assets, Loans & Advances

Inventories H
Sundry Debtors I
Cash & Bank Balances J
O the r C urren t Assets K
Loans & Advances L

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions
C u rre n tlia b ilit ie s  M
Provisions N

Net Current Assets
T O T A L

Notes to  the Accounts T
Schedules "A" to  "T " annexed here to fo rm  part o f these accounts

31 ST MARCH, 
2011

______ Rupees

17,72,73,760
184,74,67,782

184,96,97,630
32,31,79,067
17,11,87,249

436,88,05,488

316,30,69,426
125,17,01,616
191,13,67,810
38,61,31,839

229,74,99,64~9
65,26,82,794

125,06,69,870
129,07,07,866

3,01,93,879
52,877

52,19,59,480
309,35,83,972

155,95,93,089
11,53,67,838

141,86,23,045
436,88,05,488

31 ST MARCH, 
2010

________Rupees

17,72 ,73,760
135,02,98,481

131,76,70 ,926
29 ,58 ,34,790
18,21,18,653

332,31,96 ,610

298,02,75 ,223
106,15,49,662
191,87,25,561

7,47,36,123

199,34 ,61 ,68~4 
42,86 ,32,794

48,750

67,95 ,88,736
70,43,08,304
11 ,03 ,67,876

10,618
35 ,07 ,67,476

184,50,43 ,010

84 ,88 ,45,206
9,51,44 ,422

90,10 ,53,382
332,31,96 ,610

As per ou r Report attached. 
For PD. Kunte & CO.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

D. P. SAPRE
Partner
M em  N o 40740

U. SHEKHAR
Managing D irec tor

U. K. KAMAT
Executive D irec to r - Finance

S. R. SHANBHAG
W hoie-Time D irec to r

G. RAMAKRISHNAN
D irector 
H om e & Personal Care (Global)

G. KAMATH
H ead - Resource M ob ilisa tion  & U tilisation  
Process & C om pany Secretary
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P R O F I T  &  L O S S  A C C O U N T

F O R  T H E  Y EAR  E N D E D  31 ST M A R C H , 201

SCHEDULE

INCOME
Gross Sales 
Less : Excise Duty  
N et Sales
O the r Incom e O

T O T A L
EXPENDITURE
M ate ria l Cost & Inven to ry Adjustments P
Personnel Costs Q
O the r M anufactu ring , Selling and Adm in is tra tive  Expenses R

T O T A L

Pro fit Before Interest & Deprec ia tion
Interest & Finance Charges S
Pro fit Before Deprec ia tion
Deprec iation F
Profit Before Tax 
Provision fo r Taxation
- C urren t Tax
- Deferred Tax
- Prior Year Tax Adjustments  
N et P ro fit fo r the year
Add : P ro fit b rough t fo rward from  last year 
Less : Transferred to  General Reserve 

In terim  D iv idend  
Proposed D iv idend  
D iv idend D is tribu tion  Tax 

Balance carried to  Balance Sheet 
Earnings per Share Basic (Face value per share - Rs.l 0)
(Earning per Share D ilu ted  Rs.26.13; Previous Year Rs.21.93)
(Refer Note No. 12 and 13 o f Schedule T)
Notes to  the Accounts T
Schedules "A" to  "T " annexed hereto fo rm  part o f these accounts

31 ST MARCH, 
2011 

Rupees

903,33,94,831 
51,95,84,570 

851,38,10,261 
2,86,93,750 

854,25,04,011

621,32,57,476
37,65,81,466
78,26,32,280

737,24,71,222

117,00,32,789
19,49,14,307
97,51,18,482
21,79,24,774
75,71,93,708

15,18,90,000
(1,09,31,404)

10,22,427
61,52,12,685

106,22,92,119
6,16,00,000
6,20,45,816
2,65,91,064
1,46,18,769

151,26,49,155
34.70

31 ST MARCH, 
2010 

Rupees

618,70,10 ,116
28,78,75,513

589,91,34,603
3,02,82,535

592,94,17 ,138

412,13,34 ,288
29,06,32,783
66,00,73,831

507,20,40,902
85,73 ,76,236
12,47,29,808
73 ,26 ,46,428
17,24,06,466
56,02,39,962

13 ,63 ,40,000  
2,06,13,051  

(2 ,83,628) 
40,35 ,70,539  
78,03,27,229  
4 ,04 ,00 ,000  
4 ,28 ,18 ,440  
2,65,91 ,064  
1,17,96,145  

106 ,22 ,92 ,11~9 
23.56

As per ou r Report attached. 
For P.D. Kunte & CO.
Chartered Accountants
D. P. SAPRE
Partner
M em  N o 40740

U. SHEKHAR
Managing D irec to r

For and on behalf of the Board

S. R. SHANBHAG
Whole-Time D irec tor

G. RAMAKRISHNAN
D irector
H om e & Personal Care (G lobal)

U. K. KAMAT
Executive D irec to r - Finance

G. KAMATH
H ead - Resource M ob ilisa tion  & U tilisation  
Process & C om pany Secretary
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S C H E D U L E S
A N N E X E D  T O  A N D  F O R M IN G  PART O F  T H E  A C C O U N T S

31 ST M ARCH , 
2011

________Rupees

31ST MARCH, 
2010 

Rupees

A. CAPITAL :
Authorised :
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(Previous Year: 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each )

T O T A  L

Issued, Subscribed &  Paid-up :
1,77,27,376 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid-up. 
(Previous Year : 1,77,27,376 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully 
paid up)
Includes, 1,19,32,813 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, issued as 
fully paid-up Bonus Shares by capitalisation of Securities Premium, 
Reserves and balance inProfit & Loss Account.
(Previous Year : 1,19,32,813 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

T O T A  L

B. RESERVES & SURPLUS :
Capital Reserve :
Capital Subsidy received from the Covernment of Maharashtra 
under the Package Scheme of Incentives, balance as per last year

Capital Redemption Reserve :
Balance as per last year
Less : Capitalised during the year for Issue of Bonus Shares

50.00.00.000
50.00.00.000

17,72,73,760

17,72,73,760

2.11.20.721
2.11.20.721

50.00.00.000
50.00.00.000

17,72,73,760

17,72,73,760

2,11,20,721
2,11,20,721"

8,04,43,000
(8,04,43,000)

Securities Premium :
Balance as per last year
Add ; Received during the year
Less : Capitalised during the year for Issue of Bonus Shares 
Less : Utilised during the year for expenses of issue of shares

General Reserve :
Balance as per last year
Add : Transfer during the year from Profit & Loss Account

Profit & Loss Account:
Balance of Profit as per Profit & Loss Account

T O T A  L

8,61,58,510

(1,47,87,735)
7 ,1 3 ,7 0 ,^

18.07.27.131 
6,16,00,000

24.23.27.131

151,26,49,155
184,74,67,782

3,13,52,390
6,00,00,000
(51,93,880)

8,61,58,T1o

14,03,27,131
4,04,00,000

18,07,27,i TT

106,22,92,119
135,02,98,481
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31 ST MARCH, 
2011 

Rupees

31 ST MARCH, 
2010 

Rupees

C. SECURED LOANS :
Term Loans from Banks (secured by a first pari passu charge on specified 
assets and a second pari passu charge on inventories and book debts) 
(Payable within one year Rs 34,61,96,000/-, Previous Year Rs 11,02,95,000/-) 
Refer Note No. 12 of Schedule "T"

Cash Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan from Banks (secured by a 
first pari passu charge on inventories and book debts and a second charge 
on the specified assets)

TOTAL

D. UNSECURED LOANS :
Working Capital Demand Loan from a Bank 
Fixed Deposits*
Interest-free loan by way of Deferral of Sales-Tax from the 
Government of Maharashtra under the Package Schemes of Incentives. 
Loan from Directors

TOTAL
* Includes Rs. 4,12,00,000 (Previous Year Rs.3,54,30,000) from Directors

E. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) ;
Deferred Tax Liabilities :
Fixed Assets & Depreciation 
Deferred Tax Assets :
Retirement Benefits 
Others

TOTAL

114,77,78,750

70,19,18,880

184,96,97,60

1,75,43,695
23,92,45,000

6,63,90,372

32,31,79,067

19,50,66,899

(1,61,23,126)
(77,56,524)

17,11,87,249

F. FIXED ASSETS :

94,76,10,000

37,00,60,926

131,76,70,926

2,00,86,194
20,31,80,000

7,14,38,596
11,30,000

29,58,34,790

19,51,98,455

(1,25,85,995)
(4,93,807)

18,21,18,653

Gross Block Depreciation/Amortisation Net Block

Particulars

Asat
31.03.2010

Rupees

Addidons Deletions 
duringtheyear duringtheyear 

Rupees Rupees

Asat
31.03.2011

Rupees

Asat
31.03.2010

Rupees

Additions Deletions 
duringtheyear duringtheyear 

Rupees Rupees

Asat
31.03.2011

R̂ iees

Asat
31.03.2011

Rifiees

Asat
31.03.2010

Rupees

1. Leasehold Land* 19,04,31,526 49,24,948 18,55,06,578 1,42,20,621 19,64,931 1,61,85,552 16,93,21,026 17,62,10,905

2. Factory Building 50,86,51,722 4,37,36,678 - 55,23,88,400 10,87,51,234 1,85,76,478 - 12,73,27,712 42,50,60,688 39,99,00,488

3. Building-Others 4,27,11,653 9,45,254 - 4,36,56,907 1,05,36,478 7,02,350 - 1,12,38,828 3,24,18,079 3,21,75,175

4. Plant & Machinery 200,82,61,969 12,87,34,365 1,36,09,686 212,33,86,648 85,33,39,315 17,55,44,120 1,04,59,446 101,84,23,989 110,49,62,659 115,49,22,654

5. Furniture & Fixtures 5,34,73,511 114,66,278 2,90,000 6,46,49,789 1,11,82,357 40,65,901 48,118 1,52,00,140 4,94,49,649 4,22,91,154

6. Vehicles 2,92,42,355 80,40,331 8,34,519 3,64,48,167 1,03,71,865 27,64,094 6,69,235 1,24,66,724 2,39,81,443 1,88,70,490

7. Office Equipments 14,75,02,487 2,72,49,790 1,77,19,340 15,70,32,937 5,31,47,792 1,43,06,900 1,65,96,021 5,08,58,671 10,61,74,266 9,43,54,695

TOTAL 298,02,75,223 22,01,72,696 3,73,78,493 316,30,69,426 106,15,49,662 21,79,24,774 2,77,72,820 125,17,01,616 191,13,67,810 191,87,25,561

Previous Year 234,62,02,714 63,86,97,672 46,25,163 298,02,75,223 89,26,62,892 17,24,06,466 35,19,696 106,15,49,662 191,87,25,561
• Deletion in Leasehold Land during the year amountingto Rs. 49,24,948 represents refund received from GIDC upon finalisation of actual area of land at Jhagadia allotted to the Company.



G. INVESTMENTS :
(Long term, valued at cost)

1. Tiade Investments 
Investment in ;
12,000 Shares of face value US $ 0.01 each fully paid up of 
Galaxy Chemicals Inc. (Previous Year :12,000 shares)
5,00,000 Equity Shares of face value US $1 each fully paid up of 
Galaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd (Previous Year: 5,00,000 Equity Shares) 
1,33,89,300 Preference Shares of face value US $1 each 
fully paid up of Galaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd 
(Previous Year: 83,50,000 Preference Shares)

2. Non Trade Investments
a) Unquoted

2,020 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up of
The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Previous Year: 2,020 Equity Shares)
15.000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up of
The North Kanara G.S.B. Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Previous Year: 15,000 Equity Shares)
1.000 Equity Shares of Rs.25/- each fully paid-up of
Shamrao Vitthal Co-op Bank Ltd. (Previous Year: 1,000 Equity Shares) 
National Savings Certificates 
Kisan Vikas Patra
6,357 Shares of face value of Rs.100/-each fully paid up of 
Tarapur Environment Protection Society (Previous Year : Nil)

b) Quoted
7,200 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up of Union Bank of India 
(Previous Year : 7,200 Equity Shares)
(Market Value : Rs. 27,95,760/-, Previous Year : Rs. 21,09,240/)

3. Share Application Money with Galaxy Eloldings (Mauritius) Ltd.
TOT AL

H. INVENTORIES :
(Taken, valued and certified by a Director, including lying with third parties)
Raw Materials
Packing Materials
Finished Goods
Work-in-Process
Consumables, Stores & Others

TOTAL
SUNDRY DEBTORS :
(Unsecured, considered good)
Debts outstanding over six months 
Other Debts*

TOTAL
* Includes Rs. 6,19,18,695/- ( Previous year: Rs. 95,77,619/-) 
receivable from subsidiaries

31 ST MARCH, 31 ST MARCH,
2011 2010

Rupees Rupees

46,17,814 46,17,814

2,37,25,040 2,37,25,040

62,40,22,540 39,81,23,475

65,23,65,394 42,64,66,329

20,200 20,200

1,50,000 1,50,000

25,000 25,000
2,000 2,000
5,000 5,000

2,02,200 2,02,200

1,15,200 1,15,200

. 18,49,065
65,26,82,794 42,86,32,794

38,92,72,216 15,04,76,855
1,84,96,818 1,98,01,813

41,26,55,033 24,10,74,480
36,66,96,853 22,00,04,804

6,35,48,950 4,82,30,784
125,06,69,870 67,95,88,736

30,99,991 46,46,314
128,76,07,875 69,96,61,990
129,07,07,866 70,43,08,304



CASH AND BANK BALANCES :
Cash on hand
With Scheduled Banks :
- In Current Account
- In Fixed Deposit Account 
With Non-Scheduled Banks :
- In Current Account with Krungthai Bank, Bangkok
(Maximum amount outstanding at anytime during the year Rs. 8,58,522/- 
Previous Year Rs. 10,64,613/-)

T OT AL

31 ST MARCH, 
2011 

Rupees

21,85,909

2,44,05,966
27,43,482

8,58,522

3,01,93,879

31 ST MARCH, 
2010 

Rupees

17,94,235

10,65,54,483
17,60,305

2,58,853

11,03,67,876

K

L.

M.

N.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS :
Interest accrued on Bank Deposits

T O T A  L

LOANS AND ADVANCES :
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind for value to be received * 
Tender, Security & Other Deposits 
Balances with Excise Authorities 
Income Tax Paid (Net of Provisions)

T O T A  L
* Includes Rs. 2,34,86,780/- ( Previous Year Rs. 21,39,300/- ) 
recoverable from subsidiaries

CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Sundry Creditors and Expenses Payable *
Bills Payable
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 
Advances from Customers 
Unclaimed Dividend **
Security & Other Deposits
Other Liabilities
Interest accrued but not due

T O T A  L
* Includes Rs. 27,40,475/- due to Micro and Small Enterprises to 
the extent such parties have been identified from available information. 
(Previous Year Rs. 50,33,787/- )
** Refer Note No. 10 of Schedule "T"

PROVISIONS ;
Provision for Taxation (Net of Payments)
Proposed Dividend
Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax 
Provision for Retirement Benefits

T O T A  L

52.877
52.877

42,69,15,037 
2,40,17,466 
2,64,39,913 
4,45,87,064 

52,19,59,480

89,87,59,626
55,42,20,156

1,15,53,136
2,75,88,705

17,03,125
8,59,653

3,33,87,796
3,15,20,892

155,95,93,089

3,18,14,050
2,65,91,064

43,13,735
5,26,48,989

11,53,67,838

10,618
10,618

28,27,81,187
1,12,76,826
2,41,17,178
3,25,92,285

35,07,67,476

50,04,01,616
26,49,36,106

1,46,68,685
2,56,84,912

18,99,900
8,59,653

2,10,88,437
1,93,05,897

84,88,45,206

2,28,94,745
2,65,91,064

45,19,151
4,11,39,462
9,51,44,422



O. OTHER INCOME :
Dividend Income
Interest on Bank Deposits (Gross) [TDS: Rs. Nil, (Previous year Rs. Nil)] 
Sale of Scrap
Income from Cash Discount 
Interest - Others
Foreign Exchange Differences (Net)
Miscellaneous Income

T O T A  L

P. MATERIAL COST & INVENTORY ADJUSTMENTS :
Raw Materials Consumed 
Packing Materials Consumed 
Purchases - Traded goods 
Processing Charges

(Increasej/Decrease in Stock of Finished Goods & Work-in-process 
Add: Opening Stock
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Process 
Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Process
Net (lncrease)/Decrease

T O T A L

Q. PERSONNEL COSTS :
Salaries, Wages & Allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses

T O T A  L

31 ST MARCH, 
2011 

Rupees

66,840
2,56,768

52,95,025
27,98,413

3,99,133
1,64,04,397

34,73,174
2,86,93,750

613,95,03,074
33,26,93,308

5,00,71,528
92,62,168

653,15,30,078

24,10,74,480
22,00,04,804

41,26,55,033
36,66,96,853

(31,82,72,602)

621,32,57,476

32,14,94,629
2,76,77,751
2,74,09,086

37,65,81,466

31 ST MARCH, 
2010 

Rupees

87,500
3,04,199

39,77,052
1,71,19,001

62,46,787

25,47,996
3,02,82,535

380,22,15,956
27,95,62,849

4,62,34,558
56,98,113

413,37,11,476

19,29,15,443
25,57,86,653

24,10,74,480
22,00,04,804
(1,23,77,188)

412,13,34,288

24,94,72,111
2,00,73,630
2,10,87,042

29,06,32,783



R. OTHER MANUFACTURING, SELLING AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES :
Consumable Chemicals 
Power & Fuel 
Repairs & Maintenance:
- Plant & Machinery
- Building
- Others 
Rent
Insurance
Rates & Taxes
Travelling & Conveyance
Printing & Stationery
Freight & Forwarding (Net of Recovery)
Subscription, Books & Periodicals
Postage & Telephones
Legal & Professional Fees
Advertising Expenses
Exhibitions & Seminar Expenses
Discount & Commission
Donations
Directors Sitting Fees
Bank Charges
Security Charges
Water Charges
Loss on Sale/Discard of assets
Foreign Exchange Differences (Net) - Trade related
Advances written off
REACH Registration Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses

T O T A  L

S. INTEREST & FINANCE CHARGES :
Interest on Term Loans 
Interest on Working Capital 
Interest - Others 
Other Finance Charges, etc.
Net Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Cain)/Loss on Foreign Currency Loans

T O T A  L

31 ST MARCH, 
2011 

Rupees

1,12,38,406
26,30,12,494

5,69,73,225
36,37,448

1,04,80,118
64,69,171

1,90,33,989
1,59,82,197
5,49,47,852

80,65,797
8,86,34,068

54,06,432
1,44,66,182
4,44,23,826

4,99,154
74,91,198

1,31,40,201
12,31,585

8,20,000
1,98,56,563
1,16,63,471

96,34,922
42,60,833

6,19,20,626
4,93,42,522

78,26,32,280

9,74,56,578
9,15,43,743

5,20,893
66,52,768

(12,59,675)
19,49,14,307

31 ST M ARCH , 
2010 

Rupees

7 7 ,9 2 ,9 4 7
1 9 ,1 8 ,3 7 ,9 5 9

5 ,8 9 ,9 1 ,5 5 0
7 7 ,1 0 ,5 6 4
9 8 ,4 1 ,2 6 8
2 9 ,4 1 ,5 2 2

1 ,6 1 ,0 0 ,6 6 5
9 6 ,9 9 ,3 3 3

4 ,3 1 ,8 6 ,0 2 2
6 1 ,0 8 ,1 3 5

7 ,9 0 ,3 3 ,4 8 0
4 3 ,5 3 ,1 8 1

1 ,4 5 ,6 9 ,8 1 9
5 ,0 2 ,4 0 ,8 5 9

2 ,9 5 ,1 0 9
3 4 ,1 5 ,6 2 5

3 ,8 2 ,3 0 ,7 9 3
1 1 ,5 3 ,6 6 8

5 ,5 0 ,0 0 0
1 ,5 7 ,4 8 ,1 4 4

9 1 ,1 9 ,3 6 7
8 9 ,6 9 ,9 5 3

4 ,1 1 ,0 5 8
1 4 ,4 3 ,1 8 3

4 ,0 7 ,5 5 ,0 0 0

3 ,7 5 ,7 4 ,6 2 7
6 6 ,0 0 ,7 3 ,8 3 1

4 ,4 5 ,5 2 ,3 3 4
7 ,8 1 ,1 6 ,4 3 3

3 2 ,8 0 ,8 3 4
9 7 ,5 3 ,11 1

(1 ,0 9 ,7 2 ,9 04 )
1 2 ,4 7 ,2 9 ,8 0 8



N O T E S  T O  T H E  A C C O U N T S

S C H E D U L E S  A N N E X E D  T O  A N D  E O R M IN C  P AR T  O F  T H E  A C C O U N T S  (C o n td . . )
T. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1) Accounting policies adopted in preparation of financial statements:
(a) Basis for preparation of financial statements ;

(i) Accounting Convention:
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles to comply 
in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 
2006 and the relevant provisions ofthe Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under 
the historical cost convention, on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by 
the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

(ii) Use of Estimates:
The preparation ofthe financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities as atthe date ofthe financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting 
period. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, 
actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively 
and revised, in current and future periods.

(b) Revenue Recognition :
Revenue/Income and Cost/Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual basis as they are earned or incurred, except 
in case of significant uncertainties.
(i) Sales are recognised when goods are supplied and are recorded net of sales tax, sales returns and trade discounts.
(ii) Interest income is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate of interest.
(iii) Dividend income on investments is accounted for as and when the right to receive the same is established.

(c) Fixed Assets :
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation or amortisation. The cost 
of fixed assets includes all costs incidental to acquisition or construction, including taxes, duties (net of CENVAT and 
set-off), cost of installation and commissioning, interest on specific borrowings obtained for the purposes of acquiring 
the fixed assets and other indirect expenses, incurred up to trial run.

(d) Depreciation on Fixed Assets:
Depreciation is provided on straight line basis at the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. 
Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from/upto the date of such 
addition/deletion.
Leasehold Land is amortised over the primary period of lease.

(e) Valuation of Inventories:
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is ascertained on the weighted 
average basis and includes, in the case of finished goods and work-in-process, production overheads at pre-determined 
rates and excise duty, where applicable.

(f) Invpstments:
Investments in overseas subsidiaries (being long term) are stated at cost on the basis of rate prevailing on the date of 
investment. Other longterm investments are stated at cost. Provision is made for diminution in the value of investments 
where in the opinion of the Board of Directors such diminution is other than temporary. Short term investments are 
stated at lower of cost or market value.

(g) Foreign Currency Translations:
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transactions. 
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted at contracted/year end rates as applicable.



E

Exchange differences on settlement/conversion, other than in respect of long term monetary items arising after 1 April, 2007 
till 31 March, 2011, are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. The exchange difference in respect o f long term 
monetary items arising after C 'A p r il, 2007 till 31®*̂  March, 2011 to the  extent they relate to acquisition of fixed assets 
are adjusted to the cost of fixed assets and the balance is accumulated in the 'Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation 
Difference Account', which is amortised over the balance period of long term monetary item; but not later than 31 March, 
2011. Wherever forward contracts are entered into, the premium is dealt w ith in the  Profit and Loss Account over the 
period of the contracts.

(h) Research &  Development:
Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year in which it 
is incurred. Capital expenditure on Research and Development is shown as an addition to relevant Fixed Assets.

(i) Employee Benefits:
(i) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account o f the year in which  

service is rendered.
(ii) Contribution to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund and Superannuation 

Fund are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.
(iii) The Company makes annual contribution to Employees Croup Cratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme in respect 

of qualifying employees and the same is recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account. Additional liability, 
if any, in respect o f gratuity and liab ility in respect of leave encashment is recognised on the basis of valuation 
done by an independent actuary applying Project Unit Credit Method. The actuarial gain/loss arising during the 
year is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account of the year.

(j) Borrow ing Costs:
Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the  acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost 
o f such assets up to the date the assets are ready for intended use. All other borrow ing costs are recognised as an 
expense in the year in which they are incurred.

(k) Taxation:
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect o f taxable income for the period.
Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference between 
taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable o f reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods.

(I) Earning Per Share:
Basic earning per share is calculated by d ividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by 
the weighted average o f the number o f equity shares outstanding during the year.
D iluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders 
by the weighted average o f the number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects o f all 
diluted potential equity shares.

(m) Prior Period Items:
All identifiable items o f Income and Expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted through "Prior Period 
Adjustment Account".

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If 
any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount 
of the asset, or recoverable amount o fthe cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 
recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed 
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable 
amount and difference is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

(o) Provision and Cnntingent L iabilities:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for 
which it is probable that a cash outflow w ill.be required and a reliable estimate can be made ot the amount of the 
obligation.
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Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation and it is probable that a cash outflow  
w ill not be required to settle the obligation.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect o f which the likelihood o f outflow o f resources 
is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent Liabilities &Claims not provided for:
2010-11

Rupees
2009-10

Rupees
(a) Counter Cuarantees given to Banks 4 ,38,10,000 1,62,50,000
(b) Corporate Cuarantee given to bank on behalf o f subsidiary 61 ,08 ,83 ,000 2,24,45,000
(c) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, 

but disputed in appeals
- Excise Duty 1,17,516 1,17,516
- Income Tax 1,19,17,345 -

3. Fstimated am ount o f contracts remaining

2010-2011
Rupees

2009-2010
Rupees

Contracts remaining to be executed (Net of Advances) 30,58,40,541 19,59,07,363
4. Research &  Development:

Expenses 2010-2011
Rupees

2009-2010
Rupees

a) Salaries & Allowances 1,85,27,821 1,46,06,455
b) R&D Materials & O ther Expenses 1,26,98,351 1,66,84,552
c) Professional Fees 48 ,93 ,547 53,58,865
d) Capital Expenditure 49,45 ,068 27,90,519

TOTAL 4,10,64 ,787 3,94,40,391
5. Aud ito r's Remuneration:

Expenses 2010-2011
Rupees

2009-2010
Rupees*

a) Aud it Fees 20 ,00 ,000 15,00,000
b) Tax Aud it /  VAT Audit fees - 5,00,000
c) O ther Services 4 ,86,000 7,00,500
d) Out of Pocket Expenses 3,985 1,13,422

TOTAL 24,89 ,985 28,13,922

6 .

Paid to previous statutory auditors 
Manageria l Remuneration:
Expenses 2010-2011

Rupees
2009-2010

Rupees
Remuneration pa id to  Managing D irec to r and W hole tim e D irectors:
a) Salary & Allowances 2 ,18,40,000 1,85,64,000
b) Commission 1,51,00 ,000 1,41,00,000
c) Perquisites 9 ,63,890 3,61,949
d) Contribution to Provident Fund & O ther Funds 20,16 ,000 17,13,600

Sub - Total 3 ,99,19,890 3,47,39,549
Remuneration to  tbe Non-Executive D irectors:

Commission 26 ,00 ,000 15,00,000
Sub - Total 26 ,00 ,000 15,00,000

TOTAL 4,25 ,19 ,890 3,62,39,549



m

Computation o f Net Profit under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Particulars
2010-2011 2009-2010

Rupees. Rupees. Rupees. Rupees.
Profit before Taxation as per Profit & Loss Account 75,71,93,708 56,02,39,962
Add: Depreciation as per accounts 21,79 ,24 ,774 17,24,06,466
Managerial Remuneration 4,25,19 ,890 3,62,39,549
Loss on Sale o f Assets as per accounts 42,60,833 26,47,05 ,497 4,11,058 20,90,57,073
Total 102,18,99,205 76,92,97,035
Less: Depreciation calculated under Section 350 of 
the Companies Act, 1956 21,79,24 ,774 17,24,06,466
Loss on Sale o f Assets as per Section 349 o f Companies 
Act, 1956. 42,60,833 22,21 ,85 ,607 4,11,058 17,28,17,524
Net Profit in terms of Section 198 of Companies Act, 1956. 79,97,13,598 59,64,79,511
Maximum Remuneration payable to managing director 
& wholetime directors -  10% of Net Profit as computed 
above as per Companies Act, 1956. 7,99,71,360 5,96,47,951
Maximum Commission payable to non-executive 
directors -  1% of Net Profit as computed above as per 
Companies Act, 1956. 79,97,136 59,64,795
Managerial Remuneration [including commission] 
paid/payable to whole time directors subject to a 
ceiling o f 10% of Net Profits as calculated above but 
restricted to [as determined by the Board o f Directors] 3 ,99,19,890 3,47,39,549
Commission to Non-Executive Directors subject to a 
ceiling o f 1% o f Net Profits as calculated above but 
restricted to [as determined by the Board of Directors] * 26 ,00,000 15,00,000
* Commission to Non-Executive Directors is subject to approval o f shareholders at the ensuing Annual Gener al  Meeting.

7. All pre-operative costs directly attributable to new projects undertaken are accumulated as expenditures during construction 
period and are capitalised in the year of completion of project. Capital work in progress as at the year end includes the following 
balance o f expenditure during construction period as at the respective year end:

2010-11
Rupees

2009-10
Rupees

Open ing Balance 43,30,705 12,50,726
Additions during the Year
Interest & O ther Finance Charges 48,53,395 12,81,082
Personnel Cost 30,30 ,928 1,78,849
Travelling & Conveyance 14,34,014 6,26,776
Rates & Taxes 8,32,104 57,74,040
Power & Fuel 3 ,57,944 14,81,630
Security Charges 3,00,813 -
Rent 2,89,000 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,03,540 79,472
Water Charges 1,65,532 -
Postage & Telephones 22,819 -
Legal & Professional Fees 20,600 1,04,367
Subscription, Books & Periodicals 17,405 -

Printing & Stationery 15,292 -
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2010-11 2009-10
Rupees Rupees

Bank Charges 9,740 -

Total P re-operative Expenses 1,58,83,831 1,07,76,942
Less : Capitalised During the year - 64,46,237
Balance as at the year end 1,58,83,831 43,30,705

8. A. Capacity  &  Produc tion :
2010-2011 2009-2010

Particulars Unit Installed Actual Installed Actual
Capacity per Production Capacity per Production

annum annum
1. Organic Surface Active 

Agents /  Preparations. M T 1,47,240 #1 ,19 ,210 1,40,000 #1,03,101
2. Fatty Alkanolamides /  Fatty 

Acid Esters. M T 8,500 # # 3 ,8 8 5 8,500 ##3 ,3 8 2
3. O ther Specialty Chemicals. MT 8,240 # # # 5 ,1 7 0 6,940 4,305

Notes : The Installed Capacity and Production quantities include quantities for captive consumption. The installed capacities 
are based on existing product-m ix and are as per the certificate given by a Director on which the Auditors have relied, being 
a technical matter.
#  Includes (i) 27,997 MT (Previous Year 22,791 MT) used for captive consumption.

(ii) 597 M T (Previous Year 196 MT) processed from th ird parties.
# #  Includes 67 MT used for captive consumption. (Previous Year: 47 MT)
# # #  Includes 43 MT used for captive consumption. (Previous Year: Nil MT)
B. Net Sales Turnover:

Particulars
2010-2011 2009-2010

Q ty.
MT

Rupees Qty.
M T

Rupees

1. Organic Surface Active
Agents /  Preparations. 90 ,528 723,49 ,34,789 79,757 500,54 ,74 ,826

2. Fatty Alkanolamides /
Fatty Acid Esters. 3 ,800 37 ,78 ,92 ,314 3,218 26,85,96,715

3. O ther Specialty Chemicals. # 5 ,077 86,09,14 ,925 #4 ,290 62,00,80,872
4. Others 4,00,68,233 49,82,190

Total 851,38,10,261 589,91,34,603
#  Includes 94 MT (Previous year: 25 MT) in respect of traded goods.
C.

Particulars

2010-11 2009-10
Open ing Stock Closing Stock Opening Stock Closing Stock

Q ty.
MT

Rupees Q ty.
MT

Rupees Qty.
MT

Rupees Qty.
MT

Rupees

1. Organic Surface Active 
Agents /  Preparations.

2. Fatty Alkanolamides /  Fatty 
Acid Esters.

3. Other Specialty Chemicals
4. Others

3261

249
331

17,28,11,033

1,54,99,585
3,42,85,984
1,84,77,878

3946

267
#460

32,15,08,463

2,44,13,774
5,93,03,840

74,28,956

2708

132
276

15,26,07,113

1,04,68,962
2,98,39,368

3261

249
#331

17,28,11,033

1,54,99,585
3,42,85,984
1,84,77,878

Total 24,10,74,480 41,26,55,033 19,29,15,443 24,10,74,480
#  Includes 7 MT (Previous year: 22MT) in respect of traded goods.
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Particu lars
2010-2011 2009-2010

Q ty. MT Rupees Qty. MT Rupees
1. Fatty Alcohols, Fatty Acids, Oils & 

Ethylene Oxide 58,711 481 ,19 ,23 ,820 47,611 288,40,88,735
2. Acids, Alkalies & Amines 26,722 62,49,60 ,542 22,355 53,29,04,835
3. Others 70,26,18,712 38,52,22,386

Total 613 ,95 ,03,074 380,22,15,956

E. Purchase o f Traded Goods:

Particu lars
2010-2011 2009-2010

Q ty. MT Rupees Qty. MT Rupees
O ther Specialty Chemicals 
Others

79 338,55 ,998
162,15 ,530

40 2,27,79,409
2,34,55,149

Total 500,71 ,528 4,62,34,558

Value o f Raw Materia ls, Stores &  Spares Consumed:
(i) Value o f Raw Materials Consumed:

Particulars
2010-2011 2009-2010

Rupees % o f Total 
Consumption

Rupees % of Total 
Consumption

Im Dotted 203 ,30,54 ,600 33.11 156,19,85,655 41.08
Indigenous 410 ,64 ,48 ,474 66.89 224,02,30,301 58.92
Total 613 ,95 ,03 ,074 100.00 380,22,15,956 100.00
(il) Value o f Stores & Spares Consumed:

Particulars
2010-2011 2009-2010

Rupees % o f Total 
Consumption

Rupees % of Total 
Consumption

Imported 14,01 ,460 3.30 11,19 .720 2.47
Indigenous 4 ,10,13,232 96.70 4 ,42,43,566 97.53
Total 4 ,24,14,692 100.00 4 ,53,63,286 100.00

G. Value o f Im ports calculated on C.I.F. basis in respect of:
Particu lars 2010-2011

Rupees
2009-2010

Rupees
1. Raw Materials & Packing Materials 223 .61 ,48.484 116,53,46,115
2. Traded Goods 2.22.79.958 2,27,79,409
3. Capital Goods 2,55,08,809 6,72,51,316
4. Spares & Others 41,24,031 1,75,31,776

H. Expenditure in Foreign Currencies (on accrual basis):

Particulars 2010-2011
Rupees

2009-2010
Rupees

Foreign Travel 55 ,98 ,646 59,26,420
Commission Exports 39 ,88,380 3,20,34,813
Professional Fees 49 ,23 ,357 94,89,830
Exhibition, Subscription & Membership, Training, Seminar. 79,25 ,320 37,06,385
Interest & Processing Charges on Borrowings 44 ,19 ,056 1,04,71,497
Registration expenses under REACH Regulations 5 ,72,19,077 -
Advances no longer recoverable - 4,07,55,000
Others 1,69,60,560 1,16,11,802
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I. Earnings in Foreign Curreades:
Particu lars 2010-2011

Rupees
2009-2010

Rupees
Export o f goods on F.O.B. basis 441 ,95 ,77 ,867 303,64 ,56,307

9. M ic ro  and Small Scale Business Entities:
There are no M icro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days 
as at 3T ‘ March, 2011. This Information, as required to be disclosed under the M icro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis o f information available w ith the 
Company.

10. There are no amounts due and outstanding in respect of unpaid dividend, unpaid matured deposits & interest accrued thereon 
to be credited to Investors Education & Protection Fund.

11. Deriva tive  Instrum ents;
The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge against its foreign currency exposures relating to the underlying transactions 
and firm  commitments. The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes. 
The fo llow ing are the outstanding forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company as at the year end:
Currency Buy or Sell Cross Currency 31/03/2011 US $ 31/03/2010 US $

US $ 
EUR

Sell
Sell

Indian Rupees 
Indian Rupees

34 ,50 ,000  
1 7,00,000

16,00,000

The Year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:
Particulars 31“  March 2011 3T ' March 2010
Assets
In Euro 14,43 ,202 4,05,801
(Equivalent approximate in Rs.) 9 ,14,96 ,268 2,46,15,918
In USD 2,02,31,060 1,25,51,546
(Equivalent approximate in Rs.) 90 ,21 ,02 ,946 56,34,38,899
Liability
In Euro 20,67 ,515 2,22,952
(Equivalent approximate in Rs.) 13,10,76,493 1,35,24,268
In USD 2,10,42,844 1,68,28,957
(Equivalent approximate in Rs.) 93 ,83 ,00 ,422 75,54,51,887

12. Secured loans include a term loan from a commercial bank, as per the terms of which if the Company continues to be in default 
for a period o f 30 days or more from the due date o f installment of principal amounts o f the Loan or interest thereon, the Bank 
shall have the right to  convert the outstanding loan amount in to Equity Shares o f the Company at par. Accordingly these 
contingently issuable potential equity shares have been considered for calculation o f d iluted earning per share.

13. Earning Per Share:

Particulars
31“  March  

2011  
Rupees

31“  March 
2010  

Rupees
Profit after tax
The weighted average no. of equity shares for Basic EPS 
Nominal Value o f Equity Shares 
Earning Per Share (Basic)
Profit after Tax for Basic EPS
Add: Interest cost on Term loan (net o f taxes)
Profit after Tax for D iluted EPS
The weighted average no. of equity shares for Basic EPS 
Add: Adjustments for conversion of Term loan (nos.)
The weighted average no. o f equity shares for D iluted EPS 
Earning Per Share (Diluted)

61.52 .12.685
1.77.27.376  

Rs.10/-
34 .70

61.52 .12.685  
36,41,096

61,88,53,781
1.77.27.376  

59 ,58 ,904
2,36,86,280

26.13

40.35.70.539
1.71.29.020  

Rs.10/-
23.56

40.35.70.539

40.35.70 .539
1.71.29.020  

12,73,973
1,84,02,993

21.93
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14. The M inistry o f Corporate Affairs, Covernment o f India, vide Ceneral Circular No. 2 and 3 dated 8“  February, 2011 and 2T ' 

February, 2011 respectively has granted a general exemption from compliance w ith section 212 o f the Companies Act, 1956, 
subject to fu lfilm ent o f conditions stipulated in the circular. The Company has satisfied the conditions stipulated in the circular 
and hence is entitled to the exemption. Necessary information relating to the subsidiaries has been included in the  Consolidated 
Financial Statements.

15. D isclosure as per Accoun ting Standard 15 (Revised) -  Employee Benefits:
i. The Company has recognised Rs.l,50,59,050/- (Previous year Rs.l ,20,94,582/-), being Company's contribution to Covernment 

Provident Fund, as an expense and included in Personnel Costs [Schedule-Q] in the Profit and Loss Account.
ii. Defined Benefit Plans

General Descrip tion o f Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity Plan
Cratuity is payable to all eligible employees o f the Company on superannuation, death and resignation, in terms o f the 
provisions o fth e  Payment o f C ratuity Act, 1972 and employment contracts entered into by the Company.
Leave Plan
Eligible employees can carry forward and encash leave on superannuation, death and resignation as per Company's rules.

G ra tu ity Leave Salary
Particu lars

Ac tuaria l Assum ptions fo r the year
Discount Rate
Expected Rate o f Return on Plan Assets 
Proportion o f Employees opting for early retirement 
Average Salary Escalation Rate

31/03/2011
Rupees

31/03/2010
Rupees

31/03/2011
Rupees

31/03/2010
Rupees

8.25%
9.25%
0 . 0 0 %

5.00%

8.25%
9.00%
0 . 0 0 %

5.00%

8.25%
0 . 0 0 %

0 . 0 0 %

5.00%

8.25%
0 . 0 0 %

0 . 0 0 %

5.00%
Changes in the Present Value o f O b liga tion
Present Value o f the Obligation as at beginning o f the year
Interest Cost
Past Service Cost
Current Service Cost
Curtailment Cost /  (Credit)
Settlement Cost/(C redit)
Benefits paid
Actuarial (gain) /  loss on obligations
Present Value o f the Obligation as at end o f the year

4,44,77,401
36,69,386

45,67 ,043

(14,58,260)
53,33,952

5,65,89,522

3,57,47,616
29,49 ,178

35,49,382

(3,07,779)
25,39 ,004

4,44,77,401

2,31,72,275
19,11,713

17,06,411

(20,57,189)
40,38,285

2,87,71,495

1,78,28,110
14,70,820

14,10,041

(1,45,342)
26,08,646

2,31,72,275
Changes in Fair Value o f Plan Assets
Present Value o f Plan Assets as at beginning o f the year 
Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Actuarial Cain /  (Loss) on Plan Assets 
Contributions made by the Company 
Benefits Paid
Fair Value o f Plan Assets as at end of the year_________

2,65,10,214
26,11 ,990

1,34,800
49,13 ,284

(14,58,260)
3,27,12,028

2,12,19,975
20,51,969

78,902
34,67,147
(3,07,779)

2,65,10,214
Actual Return on Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Assets 
Actuarial gain /  (loss) on Plan Assets 
Actual Return on Plan Assets

26,11,990
1,34,800

27,46,790

20,51,969
78,902

21,30,871
Reconciliation o f the Present Value o f Defined Benefit 
O b liga tion &  th e Fair Value o f Assets
Present Value o f the Funded obligation as at end o f the year 
Fair Value o f Plan Assets as at end o f the year 
Present Value o f the Unfunded obligation as at end o f the year 
Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

5,65,89,522
3,27,12,028

2,38,77,494

4,44,77,401
2,65,10,214

1,79,67,187
2.87.71.495
2.87.71.495

2.31.72.275
2.31.72.275

Expenses Recognized in the P ro fit &  Loss Account
Current Service Cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets

45,67,043

36,69,386
(26,11,990)

35,49,382

29,49 ,178
(20,51,969)

17,06,411

19,11,713

14,10,041

14,70,820



Curtailment Cost /  (Credit) - - - -

Settlement Cost / (Credit) - - - -

Net Actuarial (gain) /  loss to be recognized 51,99,152 24,60,102 40,38,285 26,08 ,646
Total Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account 1,08,23,591 69,06,693 76,56,409 54,89,507
Percentage o f each category o f Plan Assets tn  the Total
Fair Value o f Plan Assets as a t e n d u f the year
Bank Deposits (Special Deposit Scheme 1975) - - - -

Debt Instruments - - - -

Administered by Life Insurance Corporation o f India 100% 100% - -

Others - - - -

The actual re turn on Plan Assets:
Actual Returns on Plan Assets administered by LIC o f India 27,46 ,790 21,30,871 - -

16. Segment Reporting (Accounting Standard 171:
a.

b.

Primary Segment: Business Segment 
The Company is engaged in the manufacture o f specialty chemicals which is considered as the only business segment.

31“  March 3T ' March
Segment Revenues 2011 2010

Rupees Rupees
A  Revenues w ith in India 406 ,43 ,10,005 281,37,14,767
B. Revenues outside India 444 ,95 ,00 ,256 308,54,19,836

Total 851,38,10,261 589,91,34,603

17. Related Parties D isclosures:
a] Names o f th e  Related Parties and nature o f re lationsh ip :
D irec t Subsidiaries:
Galaxy Chemicals Inc.
Galaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd.
S tep jJown Subsid ia ries
Galaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E (w.e.f. 14* July, 2009)
Rainbow Holdings GmbH (w.e.f. 19* June, 2009)
Tri-K Industries Inc. (w.e.f. 1='July, 2009)
Maybrook Inc. (w.e.f. T 'J u ly  2009)
Key management personnel [W hole-tim e D irectors] and the ir relatives:
Key M anagement Personnel 
[W ho le -tim e D irectors]

Relatives o f Key Management Personnel

Mr. U. Shekhar Mrs. Lakshmy Shekhar, W ife  
Mr. Karthik Shekhar, Son 
Ms. Nandini Shekhar, Daughter

Mr. S. R. Shanbhag Mrs. Vandana Shanbhag, W ife  
Ms. Sneha Shanbhag, Daughter 
Mr. Pranav Shanbhag, Son

Mr. C. Ramakrishnan Mrs. Jayashree Ramakrishnan, W ife  
Mr. Am it Ramakrishnan, Son 
Mr. Akaash Ramakrishnan, Son

Mr. U. K. Kamat Mrs. Dhanvanti Kamat, W ife  
Mr. Paresh Kamat, Son 
Ms. Mallika Kamat, Daughter

Entities over wh ich key management personnel [whole-tim e d irectors] are able to  exercise s ignificant influence:
Galaxy Emulsifiers Private Limited 
Galaxy Finsec Private Limited 
Osmania Traders Private Limited 
Galaxy Chemicals [Partnership Firm]
Galaxy Estates & Holdings [Partnership Firm]
Galaxy Investments [Partnership Firm]
Shubh Estates & Properties [Partnership Firm]
Galaxy Surfactants Limited -  Employees' Welfare Trust
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b] The fo llow ing  transactions were carried ou t w ith  related parties in the o rd ina ry course o f business
Particulars Subsidiary

Company
Entities where Key 

Management 
Personnel can 

exercise significant 
in fluence

Key Management 
Personnel

Relatives o f Key 
Management 

Personnel

2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10

Share Capital
Share Application Money
Received/ Shares allotted
Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees' 
Welfare Trust 
U.K. Kamat 
Unsecured Loans

U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Sneha Shanbhag 
Others

b Loans! Fixed Deposit Repaid 
U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Nandini Shekhar 
Others

U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Others 

Investments
a Investments made during the year 

Calaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd 
b Investments as. at 3 tst March 

Calaxy Chemicals Inc 
Galaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd 

Debtors
Balance as at year end
Tri-K Industries Inc.
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 
Maybrook, Inc 
Loans & Advances

Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 
Incorporation Expenses repaid 
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 
Galaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd 
Other Loan given
Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees'
Weifare Trust
QtheiJoan Repaid
Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees'
Welfare Trust
Balance as at year end
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E.
Calaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees'
Welfare Trust
Tri-K Industries Inc.
Inter-Corporate Loan given 
Calaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd

2 6 3 8 3 5 0 0

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4 8 0 0 0 0
3 1 0 0 0 0 0

6 5 0 0 0 0

38100000
3000000

1 00 0 0 0

341 0 0 0 0

1 6 5 0 0 0 0 0
3 0 0 0 0 0 0

3 11 0 5 7 6
2813461

1 1230

28580000
6100000

750000

1 62 5 0 0 0

11955000

3000000
5060000

1 1 0 0 0 0 0  

700000

10330000

224050000

4 6 1 7 8 1 4
647747580

5 1 9 9 2 7 0 6
92 5 1 7 8 8

674201

31161835

10642651

423600579

4 6 1 7 8 1 4
423697580

9 577619

6 234233

8 4 2 2 9 9 4
3 4 6168

2582 3 4 2 5

23383041

103739

21 3 9 3 0 0

205338000

10023425

15800000 25823425
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Subsidiary
Company

Entities where Key 
Management 
Personnel can 

exercise significant 
in fluence

Key Management 
Personnel

Relatives o f Key 
Management 

Personnel

2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10 2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10 2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10 2 0 1 0 -1 1 2009-10

g Inter-Corporate. Loan Repaid 
Calaxy Chemicals Inc 
Calaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd

6 Creditors
Balance as at year end 
Calaxy Chemicals Inc.
Tri-K Industries Inc.

7 Interest accrued but not due 
U. Shekhar
S. R. Shanbhag 
Others

8 Bank/ Corporate Guarantee given
Rainbow Holdings CmbH 
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E.

9 Income
a SalesJQ

Tri-K Industries Inc.
Maybrook Inc.
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 

b Commission Received from 
Tri-K Industries Inc.
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 

c Sample/ Testing Charges from 
Tri-K Industries Inc.

10 Expenditure
a Managerial Remuneration 

U. Shekhar 
C. Ramakrishnan 
S. R. Shanbhag 
U. K. Kamat 

b Commission on Sales 
Calaxy Chemicals Inc. 

c Prolessional Fees Paid 
OTC CmbH 

d Technical Know how Fees 
OTC CmbH 

e Advance for Capital Coods 
OTC CmbH 

f Interest  paid on Fixed jPeposits / Loaos 
U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Others

11 Dividend paid 
Calaxy Chemicals 
Calaxy Emulsifiers FVt Ltd
Calaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees'
Welfare Trust
U. Shekhar
S. R. Shanbhag
Others

43112000
205338000

2 906993
177575

3 4 1 0 9 2 0
544511

1 176784
2 1 8246

1 097682 4 22898

2 2 2 9 5 0 0 0
588588000

121516322
1147651

3 0 4 0 7 4 7 6

4 2 526
9 4 4 1 0 4

1 3950

2 2 4 4 5 0 0 0

9 590853

10609135
9 7 6 0 6 0 0
9 789555
9 7 6 0 6 0 0

8 854015
8651151
8 627233
8 6 0 7 1 5 0

2 8 8 0 2 7 5 0

14 0 9 1 9 0

2 0 0 1 6 0 0 0

2 0 7 3 9 0 0 0

3 510134
372372

10416

253 7 1 1 7
5 68896

1 1 0 0 0 1314574 613013

22810160 
1357500

7 12500

2 2 5 9 9 0 8 0
135 7 5 0 0

2 0 6 5 8 0

1 0 2 8 3 6 0 0
1 0 1 4 5 2 1 0

6 0 8 0 2 7 0

1 0 2 8 3 6 0 0
1 0 1 7 0 2 1 0

595 0 2 7 0 506 8 4 3 0 5 048430

18. O pera ting  Leases:
a) A.ssets taken nn operating lease:

The Company has operating lease agreements, primarily for leasing office space and residential premises for its employees.
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Most o f the lease agreements provide for cancellation by e ither party w ith  a notice period o f 30 days. Lease payments 
recognised in the Profit & Loss Account for the year are Rs. 54,69,170/- (Previous Year Rs. 29,41,522/-).

b) Assets given on operating lease:
The Company has operating lease agreements in respect o f residential premises. These agreements provide for a cancellation 
by either party w ith a notice period o f 30 days. Lease Rental Incomes recognised in the Profit & Loss Account for the year 
are Rs. 54,000/- (Previous Year Rs. 1,91,250/-).

19. During the year ended 31 st March, 2009, the Company exercised the option provided by newly inserted paragraph 46 in AS-11, 
The Effect o f Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. Accordingly, in respect o f accounting periods commencing on or after 1 st April, 
2007, exchange difference in respect o f longterm  foreign currency liability to the extent relatable to acquisition o f depreciable 
capital assets was adjusted to the cost o f the assets and the balance exchange difference in respect o f longterm foreign currency 
monetary items was accumulated in 'Foreign Currency Monetary Items Translation Difference Account'. The amount adjusted 
on this account to the cost o f fixed assets is being depreciated over the balance life o f the assets and the amount in 'Foreign 
Currency Monetary Items Translation Difference Account' is being amortised over the balance period o fthe  long term foreign 
currency liability; but not beyond 3T 'M arch, 2011. During the year, the Company has amortised the remaining amount of 
Rs. 48,750/- out o f the said account.

20. Previous year's figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary, to  conform  to  th is year's classification.



21. A d d it io n a l in fo rm a tio n  p u rs u a n t to  Part IV  o f S chedu le  V I to  th e  C om pan ie s  A c t, 1956. 
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT A N D  C O M PANY 'S  GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I. Registration details 
Registration No.

Balance Sheet

3 9 8 7 7

0 3 1 1

Date Month Year

State Code

Capital raised during the Year (Amount in Rupees)
Public Issue
N L

Equity Issue
N L

Bonus Issue Private Placement
N N I L

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Amount in Rupees)
Total Liabilities

4 3 6 8 8 0 5 4 8 8

Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital

1 7 7 2 7 3 7 6 0

Secured Loans
1 8 4 9 6 9 7 6 3 0

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
1 7 1 1 8 7 2 4 9

lication of Funds
Net Fixed Assets
2 2 9 7 4 9 9 6 4 9

Net Current Assets
1 4 1 8 6 2 3 0 4 5

Accumulated Losses
N

IV. Performance of Company (Amount in Rupees) 
Turnover
8 5 1 3 8 1 0 2 6 1

(-I-) Profit / (-) Loss Before Tax

1
7 5 7 1 9 3 7 0 8

Earning aer share in Rupees 

’ 0

Total Assets

Reserves & Surplus

Investments

Misc. Expenditure
N T

4 3 6 8 8 0 5 4 8 8

1 8 4 7 4 6 7 7 8 2
Unsecured Loans

3 2 3 1 7 9 0 6 7

6 5 2 6 8 2 7 9 4

Foreign Currency Monetary Translation 
Difference Account

N

Total Expenditure
7 7 5 6 6 1 6 5 5 3

1(-F) Profit/ (-) Loss After Tax

6 1 5 2 1 2 6 8 5

Dividend Rate %

5 I 0 I %



m
a

a
a
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V. Generic names of principal products of the company 

(ITC Code)

(ITC Code) 

(ITC Code)

(ITC Code) 

(ITC Code)

(ITC Code)

(ITC Code)

3 4 0 2 1 1 0 0

F A T T Y A L C O H O L S u L P H A T E S A N D

F A T T Y A L C O H O L E T H E R S u L P H A T E S

3 4 0 2 1 9 0 0

A M P H O T E R 1 C s U R F A C T A N T S

3 4 0 2 1 3 0 0

A L K A N 0| L A M 1 D E S / F A T T Y A C 1 D

E S T E R S

3 4 0 2 1 1 0 0

S U L F O S u c c 1 N A T E S

3 4 0 2 9 0 0 9

ol R C A N 1 c s u R F A c E A C T 1 V E

P R E P A R A T 1 o N S

3 4 0 2 1 2 0 0

Q u A R T E R N A R Y A M M O N 1 U M

C o M P O U N D S

3 4 0 2 1 3 0 0

E T H Y L E N E O X 1 D E C o N D E N S A T E S

A N D T E X T 1 L E A U X 1 L 1 A R 1 E S

Note : Classification of products/services under ITC code being of a technical nature is not verified by the Auditors.

As per our Report attached. 
For P.D. Kunte & CO.
Chartered Accountants

D. P. SAPRE
Fortner
M em  N o 40740

For and on behalf of the Board

U.SHEKHAR
Managing D irec to r

U. K. KAMAT
Fxecutive D irec to r - Finance

S. R. SHANBHAG
W hole-Time D irec to r

G. RAMAKRISHNAN
D irector
H om e & Personal Care (G lobal)

G. KAMATH
H ead - Resource M ob ilisa tion  &  U tilisation  
Process & Com pany Secretary
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C A S H  F L O W  S T A T E M E N T
FO RTH E YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2011

Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before Tax, Extraordinary items 
Adjustments for:
Add :
Depreciation 
Interest paid 
Loss on Sale of Assets 
Less :
Dividend Income
Interest Income
Prior Year Tax Adjustments
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 
Working Capital Changes
Inventories
Trade & Other Receivables 
Other Advances 
Current Liabilities 
Other Liabilities
Cash generated from Operations
Income Taxes Paid
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (a)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Capital Expenditure 
Sale of Fixed Assets 
Investment in Subsidiary 
Investment Others 
Dividend Income 
Interest Income
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (b)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Share Issue Expenses
Issue of Equity Shares
Net Secured Borrowings
Sales Tax Deferrals / MIDC Incentives
Fixed Deposits
Repayment of Loans from Directors 
Receipt/ (Repayment) of Loan from Others 
Foreign Currency Translation Difference 
Interest & Finance Charges 
Equity Dividend & Dividend Tax thereon 
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (c )
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (a) + (b) + (c) 
Cash and Cash Equivaients - Opening Balance 
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Cain/ (Loss)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivaients

Amount
Rupees

Amount
Rupees

Amount
Rupees

Amount
Rupees

75,71,93,708 56,02,39,962

21,79,24,774 17,24,06,466
19,49,14,307 12,47,29,808

42,60,833 41,70,99,914 4,11,058 29,75,47,332

(66,840) (87,500)
(6,55,901) (65,50,986)

(10,22,427) (17,45,168) 2,83,628 (63,54,858)
117,25,48,454 85,14,32,436

(57,10,81,134) 21,47,690
(58,63,99,562) 9,30,33,619
(15,91,97,225) (5,16,38,628)

71,07,47,883 12,01,29,818
1,15,09,527 (59,44,20,511) 87,83,711 17,24,56,210

57,81,27,943 102,38,88,646
(15,49,65,474) (10,91,92,248)

42,31,62,469 91,46,96,398

(52,66,43,464) (60,85,35,003)
4,19,893 6,94,409

(22,40,50,000) (42,36,00,579)
- (25,000)

66,840 87,500
6,55,901 65,50,986

(74,95,50,830) (102,48,27,687)

(1,47,87,735)
- 6,60,00,000

53,20,26,704 21,31,58,490
(50,48,225) (67,36,574)
3,60,65,000 10,51,75,000
(11,30,000) (59,35,267)
(25,42,499) 1,27,14,370

48,750 18,68,750
(19,49,14,307) (12,47,29,808)
(10,34,61,065) (10,01,90,868)

24,62,56,623 16,13,24,093
(8,01,31,738) 5,11,92,804
11,03,78,494 5,91,85,690

1,46,105 52,383
3,01,00,651 3,02,46,756 11,03,26,111 11,03,78,494

(8,01,31,738) 5,11,92,804
As per our Report attached. 
For P.D. Kunte & CO.
Chartered Accountants 
D. P. SAPRE
Partner
Mem No 40740

U.SHEKHAR
Managing Director

For and on behalf of the Board

S. R. SHANBHAG
Whole-Time Director

U. K. KAMAT
Executive Director - Finance

G. RAMAKRISHNAN
Director
hiome & Personal Care (Global)

G. KAMATH
Head - Resource Mobilisation & Utilisation 
Process & Company Secretary
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ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GALAXY SURFACTANTS LIMITED AND ITS 
SUBSIDIARIES
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GALAXY SURFACTANTS LIMITLD
1. We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet o f GALAXY SURFACTANTS LIMITLD (the Company) and its 

subsidiaries as at 31“ March 2011, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for 
the year ended on that date annexed thereto, in which are incorporated the accounts o fth e  subsidiary companies audited 
by other auditors. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company management. Our responsibility is to  
express an op in ion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We have conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted auditing standards in India. These standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are prepared in all material 
respects, in accordance w ith an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstatements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary companies, whose financial statements reflect total assets (net) of 
Rs. 18,02,377/- as at 31“ March 2011 [previous year Rs. (1,99,96,563/-)] and total revenues o f Rs. 3,1 7,35,1 70/- fo rthe  year 
ended on that date (previous year loss Rs. 2,46,05,338/-). These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us and our op in ion , in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect o fth e  
subsidiary companies is based solely on the report o f the other auditors.

4. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared bythe Company in accordance w ith the requirements 
of Accounting Standard 21 (AS-21) on Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and on the basis o fthe separate audited financial statements o fthe Company and its subsidiaries, included in the consolidated 
financiai statements.

5. Commission payable to non executive directors o f the Holding Company is subject to approval o f the shareholders at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

6. Subject to our comments in para (5) above, on the basis of the information and explanations given to us and on the consideration 
of the separate aud it reports on individual audited financial statements o f the Company and its subsidiaries, we are o f the 
opin ion that the said consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conform ity w ith the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:
(a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, o f the state o f affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 “  March 2011;
(b) in the case o f the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the consolidated results o f operations o f the Company and 

its subsidiaries for the year ended on that date; and
(c) in the case o f Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, o f the cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 

on that date.

For and on behalf of 
R D. Kunte & Co. (Regd.)

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 105479W

D.R Sapre



C O N S O L ID A T E D  B A L A N C E  S H E E T
AS AT 31 ST MARCH, 2011

SOURCES OF FUNDS ------
Shareholders' Funds

Capital
Reserves & Surplus 

Loan Funds
Secured Loans 
Unsecured Loans 

Deferred Tax L iab ility  (N e t )
T O T A L

APPLICATION OF FUNDS 
Fixed Assets

Gross Block 
Less: Depreciation  
Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress at cost, including advances 
(Refer Note No. 5 o f Schedule "T")

Investments
Foreign Currency M one ta ry Item  Translation  
D iffe rence Account
Curren t Assets, Loans & Advances

Inventories 
Sundry Debtors 
Cash & Bank Balances 
Other Current Assets 
Loans & Advances

Less: C u rren t L iab ilities and Provisions
Current Liabilities 
Provisions 

Net C urren t Assets
T O T A L

Notes to the Accounts
Schedules "A" to "T" annexed hereto form part o f these accounts

A
B

C
D
E

H
I
J
K
L

M
N

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 1  

Rupees

17 ,72 ,73 ,760
184 ,92 ,70 ,158

225 ,10 ,07 ,630
32 ,31 ,79 ,067
16 ,52 ,79 ,517

476 ,60 ,10 ,132

321,51,06,791
126 ,78 ,08 ,878
194 ,72 ,97 ,913
118 ,93 ,45 ,487

313 ,66 ,43 ,400  
3,1 7 ,400

141 ,29 ,30 ,968
138 ,30 ,15 ,928

8 ,50,62 ,666
52 ,877

52 ,60 ,89 ,986
340 ,71 ,52 ,425

164 ,88 ,38 ,066
12 ,92 ,65 ,027

162 ,90 ,49 ,332
476 ,60 ,10 ,132

31ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 0  

Rupees

17,72,73,760
133 ,03,01 ,918

132,13 ,27,034
29 ,58 ,34 ,790
17,81 ,20 ,884

330 ,28 ,58 ,386

302,54,13 ,872
106,99 ,64,715
195 ,54 ,49,157
24,27 ,67,673

219 ,82 ,16 ,830
3,17,400

48,750

79,32 ,08,130
79,22 ,06,436
18,56,11,775

10,618
36 ,38,49,446

213.48.86 .405

92,89,88,681
10,16 ,22 ,318

110 .42.75 .406  
330 ,28,58 ,386

As per our Report attached. 
For P.D. Kunte & CO.
Chartered Accountants
D. P. SAPRE
Partner
Mem No 40740

For and on behalf o f the Board

U. SHEKHAR
Managing Director

U. K. KAMAT
Executive D irector - Finance

S. R. SHANBHAG
Whole-Time Director

G. RAMAKRISHNAN
Director 
Home & Personal Care (Ciobal)

G. KAMATH
Head - Resource Mobilisation & Utilisation 
Process & Company Secretary
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C O N S O L ID A T E D  P R O F IT  &  L O S S  A C C O U N T
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2011

E

Schedules "A" to "T " annexed hereto form part o f these accounts

31 ST MARCH, 
2011

31 ST MARCH, 
2010

INCOME
SCHEDULE Rupees Rupees

Gross Sales 979 ,37 ,97 ,333 673 ,04,50,032
Less : Lxcise Duty 51 ,95 ,84 ,570 28 ,78,75 ,513
Net Sales 927 ,42 ,12 ,763 644 ,25 ,74 ,519
O ther Income O 4,38,44 ,703 4 ,28 ,30 ,568

T O T A L 931 ,80 ,57 ,466 648 ,54 ,05 ,087
EXPENDITURE
Material Cost & Inventory Adjustments P 657 ,96 ,77 ,025 442 ,16 ,27 ,354
Personnel Costs Q 58 ,28 ,38 ,070 48 ,60 ,08 ,397
O ther Manufacturing, Selling and Administrative Expenses R 92,28 ,80 ,668 75,09,26,321

T O T A L 808 ,53 ,95 ,763 565,85,62,072

Profit Before Interest & Depreciation 123 ,26 ,61 ,703 82,68 ,43,015
Interest & Finance Charges S 19 ,49 ,14 ,307 12,47 ,29 ,808
Profit Before Depreciation 103 ,77 ,47 ,396 70,21 ,13 ,207
Depreciation F 22,58,44,631 17 ,85,21 ,789
Profit Before Tax 
Provision for Taxation

81 ,19 ,02 ,765 52 ,35,91,418

- Current Tax 17 ,68 ,32 ,557 14,37 ,07,987
- Deferred Tax (1 ,29 ,10 ,920) 1,96,56,954
- Prior Year Tax Adjustments 10 ,33 ,274 (2,50,105)
Add /  (Less): M ino rity  Interest - 1 ,84,88,620
Net Profit for the year 64 ,69 ,47 ,854 37,89 ,65,202
Add : Profit brought forward from last year 103 ,93 ,28 ,690 78,19 ,69,137
Less: Transferred to General Reserve 6 ,16,00 ,000 4,04,00 ,000

Interim Dividend 6 ,20,45 ,816 4,28 ,18 ,440
Proposed D ividend 2 ,65,91 ,064 2,65,91,064
D ividend D istribution Tax 1,46,18 ,769 1,17,96,145

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 152 ,14 ,20 ,895 103 ,93 ,28 ,690
Lamings per Share Basic (Face value per share - Rs.10) 
(Earning per Share D iluted Rs.27.47; Previous Year Rs.20.59) 
(Refer Note No. 6 and 7 o f Schedule T)
Notes to the Accounts T

36.49 22.12

As per our Report attached. 
For P.D. Kunte &  CO. 
Chartered Accountants
D. P. SAPRE
Partner
Mem No 40740

For and on behalf o f the Board

U. SHEKHAR
Managing Director

U. K. KAMAT
Executive D irector - Finance

S. R. SHANBHAG
Whole-Time Director

G. RAMAKRISHNAN
Director 
Home & Personal Care (Global)

G. KAMATH
Head - Resource Mobilisation & Utilisation 
Process & Company Secretary



C O N S O L ID A T E D  S C H E D U L E S
ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF HE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

A. CAPITAL:
Authorised :
5,00,00,000 Equity Shares o f Rs.10/- each
(Previous Year: 5,00,00,000 Equity Shares o f Rs.10/- each)

T O T A L
Issued, Subscribed &  Paid-up :
1,77,27,376 Equity Shares o f Rs.10/- each, fu lly paid-up.
(Previous Year : 1,77,27,376 Equity Shares o f Rs.10/- each, fu lly paid up)

Includes, 1,19,32,813 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, issued as fully paid-up 
Bonus Shares by capitalisation of Securities Premium, Reserves and balance in 
Profit & Loss Account (Previous Year: 1,19,32,813 Equity Shares of Rs.l 0/- each.) 

T O T A L

B. RESERVES & SURPLUS :
Capita l Reserve :
Capital Subsidy received from the Covernment o f Maharashtra 
under the Package Scheme o f Incentives, balance as per last year

Capita l Reserve on Conso lida tion :
Balance as per last year

Capita l Redemption Reserve :
Balance as per last year
Less: Capitalised during the year for Issue o f Bonus Shares

Securities P rem ium  :
Balance as per last year
Add : Received du ring the  year
Less : Capitalised during the year for Issue o f Bonus Shares 
Less : Utilised during the year for expenses o f issue o f shares

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance as per last year
Add : Net adjustment for the year

General Reserve :
Balance as per last year
Add: Transfer during the year from Profit & Loss Account

P ro fit &  Loss Account :
Balance o f Profit as per Profit & Loss Account 

T O T A L

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 1  

Rupees

50 .00 .00 .000
50 .00 .00 .000

17 ,72 ,73 ,760

17 ,72 ,73 ,760

2.11.20.721
2.11.20.721

3.11.23 .573
3.11.23 .573

8 ,61,58 ,510

(1 ,47 ,87,735)
7,13,70,775

(2 ,81 ,56 ,707)
(99 ,36,230)

(3 ,80 ,92,937)

18.07.27.131  
6 ,16,00 ,000

24.23.27.131

152 ,14 ,20 ,895
184 ,92 ,70 ,158

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 0  

Rupees

50 .00 .00 .000
50 .00 .00 .000

17,72 ,73,760

17 ,72 ,73 ,760

2.11.20.721
2.11.20.721

3.11.23.573
3.11.23.573

8,04,43 ,000
(8,04,43,000)

3 ,13,52 ,390
6 , 0 0 , 0 0 , 0 0 0

(51,93,880)

8 ,61,58,510

(2.81.56.707)
(2.81.56.707)

14.03.27.131  
4 ,04 ,00 ,000

18.07.27.131

103 ,93 ,28 ,690
133 ,03 ,01 ,918



■

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS 
(Contd..)

C. SECURED LOANS :
Term Loans from  Banks (secured by a first pari passu charge on specified 
assets and a second pari passu charge on inventories and book debts) 
(Payable w ithin one year Rs. 34,61,96,000/-, Previous Year Rs. 11,02,95,000/-) 
(Refer Note No. 6 o f Schedule "T" )
Term Loans from Others (secured by a first charge on movable and immovable 
assets, other than working capital assets, o f Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 
(Payable w ith in  one year Rs. Nil, Previous Year Rs. Nil)
Cash Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan from Banks (secured by a 
first pari passu charge on inventories and book debts and a second charge 
on the specified assets)

T O T A L
D. UNSECURED LOANS :

W orking Capital Demand Loan from a Bank 
Fixed Deposits*
interest-free loan by way o f Deferral o f Sales-Tax from  the 
Covernment o f Maharashtra under the Package Schemes o f Incentives. 
Loan from Directors

T O T A L
* Includes Rs. 4 ,12,00,000 (PreviousYear Rs.3,54,30,000) from Directors

E. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) :
Deferred Tax L iab ilities :
Fixed Assets & Depreciation
Deferred Tax Assets :
Retirement Benefits 
Others

T O T A L
F. FIXED ASSETS:

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 1  

Rupees

114 ,77 ,78 ,750

40 ,13 ,10 ,000

70 ,19 ,18 ,880
225 ,10 ,07 ,630

1 ,75,43,695
23 ,92 ,45 ,000

6 ,63,90 ,372

32 ,31 ,79 ,067

18 ,91 ,59 ,167

(1 ,61 ,23,126)
(77 ,56,524)

16 ,52 ,79 ,517

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 0  

Rupees

94 ,76 ,10 ,000

37 ,37,17 ,034
132 ,13 ,27 ,034

2 ,00,86 ,194
20 ,31 ,80 ,000

7,14,38,596
11 ,30 ,000

29 ,58 ,34 ,790

19,12,00 ,686

(1,25,85,995)
(4,93,807)

17,81 ,20,884

C ro s s  B lo c k D e p r e c ia t io n /A m o r t is a t io n N e t  B lo c k

Particulars Asat Additions Deletions Asat Asat Additions Deletions Asat Asat Asat

31.03.2010 duringtheyear Adjustments# duringtheyear 
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

31.03.2011
Rupees

31.03.2010 duringtheyear 
Rupees Rupees

Adjustments duringtheyear 
Rupees Rupees

31.03.2011
Rupees

31.03.2011
Rupees

31.03.2010
Rupees

1. Leasehold Land* 22,83,51,118 10,34,678 (2,53,417) 49,24,948 22,42,07,431 2,03,29,905 80,85,844 (1,73,290) - 2,82,42,459 19,59,64,972 20,80,21,213

2. Factory Building 50,86,51,722 4,37,36,678 55,23,88,400 10,87,51,234 1,85,76,478 12,73,27,712 42,50,60,688 39,99,00,488

3. Building-Others 4,27,11,653 9,45,254 4,36,56,907 1,05,36,478 7,02,350 1,12,38,828 3,24,18,079 3,21,75,175

4. Plant & Machinery 200,88,23,616 12,96,01,965 (3,753) 1,36,09,686 212,48,12,142 85,35,17,170 17,57,17,627 (4,963) 1,04,59,446 101,87,70,388 110,60,41,754 115,53,06,446

5. Furniture & Fixtures 5,57,66,312 1,24,33,208 (15,323) 2,90,000 6,78,94,197 1,16,57,576 44,39,633 (11,262) 48,118 1,60,37,829 5,18,56,368 4,41,08,736

6. Vehicles 2,92,42,358 80,40,331 - 8,34,519 3,64,48,170 1,03,71,868 27,64,094 6,69,235 1,24,66,727 2,39,81,443 1,88,70,490

7. Office Equipments 15,18,67,093 3,15,80,960 (29,1691 1,77,19,340 16,56,99,544 5,48,00,484 155,58,605 (38,133) 1,65,96,021 5,37,24,935 11,19,74,609 9,70,66,609

TOTAL 302,54,13,872 22,73,73,074 (3,01,662) 3,73,78,493 321,51,06,791 106,99,64,715 22,56,44,631 (2,27,648) 2,77,72,820 126,78,08,878 194,72,97,913 195,54,49,157

Previous Year** 234,74,81,822 68,67,22,229 (33,35,449) 54,54,730 302,54,13,872 89,38,18,395 18,11,20,883 (625,300) 43,49,263 106,99,64,715 195,54,49,157

#  Differences due to changes in exchange rates
* Deletion in Leasehold Land during the year amounting to Rs 49,24,948 represents refund received from GIDC upon finalisation of actual area of land at Jhagadia allotted to the Company. 
*• Additions during Previous year include additions on Acquisition of Subsidiary Companies.
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G. INVESTMENTS :
(Non-trade, long term, valued at cost)
U nquo ted
2,020 Equity Shares o f Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up of
The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Previous Year : 2,020 Equity Shares)
15.000 Equity Shares o f Rs.10/- each fu lly paid-up of
The North Kanara C.S.B. Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Previous Year; 15,000 Equity Shares)
1.000 Equity Shares o f Rs. 25/- each fu lly paid-up of
Shamrao Vitthal Co-op. Bank Ltd. (Previous Year : 1,000 Equity Shares) 
National Savings Certificates 
Kisan Vikas Patra
6,357 Shares o f face value o f Rs.100/-each fu lly paid up of 
Tarapur Environment Protection Society (Previous Year ; Nil)

Quo ted
7,200 Equity Shares o f Rs 10/- each fully paid up o f Union Bank o f India 
(Previous Year : 7,200 Equity Shares)
(Market Value ; Rs. 27 ,95 ,760 /-, Previous Year; Rs. 21,09,240/-)

T O T A L

H. INVENTORIES :
(Taken, valued and certified by a Director, including lying w ith third parties) 
Raw Materials 
Packing Materials 
Finished Goods 
Work-in-Process 
Consumables, Stores & Others 

T O T A L

I. SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured) :
(a) Over six months

(i) Considered good
(ii) Considered doubtfu l

(b) Others
(i) Considered good
(ii) Considered doubtfu l

Less: Provision for doubtfu l debts 
T O T A L

CASH AND BANK BALANCES ;
Cash on hand 
Bank Balances

J.
(a)
(b)

(i) W ith Scheduled Banks :
- In Current Account
- In Fixed Deposit Account

(ii) W ith Foreign Banks :
- In Current Account

T O T A L

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 1  

Rupees

2 0 , 2 0 0

1,50 ,000

25,000
2 , 0 0 0

5,000

2 , 0 2 , 2 0 0

1,15 ,200

3 ,17 ,400

39 ,90 ,60 ,750
1,84,96 ,818

56 ,20 ,70 ,774
36 ,97 ,53 ,676

6 ,35,48 ,950
141 ,29 ,30 ,968

30,99,991
2,15 ,225

137 ,99 ,15 ,937
31 ,29 ,025

138 ,63 ,60 ,178
33 ,44 ,250

138 ,30 ,15 ,928

22 ,17 ,239

2 ,44,05 ,966
27 ,43 ,482

5 ,56,95 ,979
8,50 ,62 ,666

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 0  

Rupees

2 0 , 2 0 0

1,50,000

25,000
2 , 0 0 0

5,000

2 , 0 2 , 2 0 0

1,15,200

3,17,400

15,53,80,575
1,98,01,813

34,97 ,90,154
22 ,00 ,04 ,804
4 ,82,30,784

79,32 ,08 ,130

46 ,46 ,314

78,75,60,122
33.66 .750  

79,55 ,73,186
33.66 .750  

79 ,22 ,06,436

26 ,45 ,880

10,65,54,483
17,60,305

7,46,51,107
18,56,11,775
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K. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS :
Interest accrued on Bank Deposits 

T O T A L

L. LOANS AND ADVANCES :
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind for value to be received 
Tender, Security & O ther Deposits 
Balances w ith Excise Authorities 
Income Tax Paid (Net o f Provisions)

T O T A L

M. CURRENT LIABILITIES ;
Sundry Creditors and Expenses Payable 
Bills Payable
Creditors for Capital Expenditure 
Advances from Customers 
Unclaimed D ividend  
Security & O ther Deposits 
O ther Liabilities 
Interest accrued but not due

T O T A L

N. PROVISIONS :
Provision for Taxation (Net o f Payments)
Proposed D ividend
Provision for D ividend D istribution Tax 
Provision for Retirement Benefits

T O T A L
O. OTHER INCOME :

Commission Income 
Profit on sale o f subsidiary 
Dividend Income 
Interest on Bank Deposits 
Sale o f Scrap
Income from Cash Discount 
Interest - Others
Foreign Exchange Differences (Net)
Miscellaneous Income

T O T A L

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 1  

Rupees

_______ 52,877
_______ 52,877

41 ,95 ,09 ,754
3 ,55,53 ,255
2,64,39 ,913
4 ,45 ,87 ,064

52 ,60 ,89 ,986

98 ,73 ,45 ,920
55 ,42 ,20 ,156

1,15,53 ,136
2,75,88 ,705

17 ,03 ,125
8 ,59,653

3 ,40,46 ,479
3 ,15 ,20 ,892

164 ,88 ,38 ,066

4 ,57,11 ,239
2,65 ,91 ,064

43 ,13 ,735
5 ,26 ,48 ,989

12 ,92 ,65 ,027

1 ,05 ,55 ,016

66 ,840
2 ,58 ,454

52 ,95 ,025
27 ,98 ,413

3 ,99,133
2,03 ,41 ,043

41 ,30 ,779
4,38 ,44 ,703

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 0  

Rupees

 10,618
 10,618

29 ,08 ,31 ,127
1,63,08,856
2,41,17,178
3,25,92,285

36,38 ,49,446

58,39,88 ,853
26,49 ,36,106

1,46,68,685
2,56,84,912

18,99,900
8,59,653

1,76,44,675
1,93,05,897

92,89,88,681

2,93,72,641
2,65,91,064

45,19,151
4 ,11,39,462

10,16 ,22,318

40,34 ,733
10,42 ,610

87,500
3,64,228

39,77 ,052
1,71,19,001

88 ,93 ,148

73,12 ,296
4 ,28 ,30 ,568



Q.

MATERIAL COST & INVENTORY ADJUSTMENTS
Raw Materials Consumed 
Packing Materials Consumed 
Purchases- Traded goods 
Processing Charges
Foreign Currency Translation Difference on Stock

(lncrease)/Decrease in Stock o f Finished Goods & W ork-in-process  
Add: O pen ing  Stock
Finished Coods
Add ition on Acquisition - Finished Coods
Work-in-Process
Less: C losing Stock
Finished Coods
Work-in-Process
Net (lncrease)/Decrease

T O T A L

PERSONNEL COSTS :
Salaries, Wages & Allowances 
Contribution to Provident Fund and O ther Funds 
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 

T O T A L

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 1  

Rupees

614 ,50 ,78 ,693
33 ,26 ,93 ,308
45 ,64 ,53 ,676

92 ,62 ,168
(17,81,328)

694 ,17 ,06 ,517

34 ,97 ,90 ,154

22 ,00 ,04 ,804

56 ,20 ,70 ,774
36 ,97 ,53 ,676

(36 ,20 ,29 ,49 ^

657 ,96 ,77 ,025

49 ,21 ,11 ,667
4,47 ,12 ,313
4,60 ,14 ,090

58 ,28 ,38 ,070

31 ST MARCH, 
2 0 1 0  

Rupees

383 ,39 ,61 ,047
27 ,95 ,62 ,849
31,15 ,44,250

56,98,113
(79,55,380)

442 ,28 ,10 ,879

19,29,15,443
11,99,09 ,337
25,57 ,86,653

34,97,90 ,154
22,00,04 ,804

(11,83,525)'

442 ,16 ,27 ,354

41 ,19 ,05 ,399
3,39,82,721
4 ,01,20 ,277

48 ,60 ,08 ,397



R.

S.

31 ST MARCH, 31ST MARCH,
2011 2010

Rupees Rupees
OTHER MANUFACTURING, SELLING AND  
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES :
Consumable Chemicals 1 ,41 ,81 ,916 1,03,00 ,727
Power & Fuel 26 ,30 ,12 ,494 19 ,18,37,959
Repairs & Maintenance: 
- Plant & Machinery 5 ,80 ,54 ,232 6,07,50,065
- Building 52 ,70 ,667 97 ,04 ,764
- Others 1,15,91,911 1,02,15,451
Rent 2 ,45 ,35 ,200 2 ,37,80,904
Insurance 2 ,41,72 ,909 2,12,43 ,345
Rates & Taxes 1 ,59,82 ,197 97,84 ,682
Travelling & Conveyance 7,97,49 ,577 6 ,84,87 ,669
Printing & Stationery 1,03,74,781 78,65,555
Freight & Forwarding (Net o f Recovery) 11 ,09 ,44 ,488 7,23,35,902
Subscription, Books & Periodicals 88 ,25 ,712 66,75,791
Postage & Telephones 1 ,92,54 ,093 1,91,40,951
Legal & Professional Fees 6 ,54,34 ,924 7,78,74 ,167
Advertising Expenses 76 ,25 ,259 32,85,411
Exhibitions & Seminar Expenses 1 ,96,86 ,430 64,03,251
Discount & Commission 1,31,40,201 95,24,543
Donations 12 ,48 ,676 12,32 ,418
Directors Sitting Fees 8 ,20 ,000 5 ,50,000
Bank Charges 2 ,09,37 ,593 1 ,70,68,480
Security Charges 1,16,63,471 91 ,19 ,367
Water Charges 96 ,34 ,922 89,69 ,953
Bad Debts w ritten off 17 ,14 ,047 29,44,111
Loss on Sale/Discard o f assets 42 ,60 ,833 2 ,21,394
Foreign Exchange Differences (N e t) - Trade related - 1,10,01,536
Advances w ritten off - 2 ,07,39 ,000
REACH Registration Expenses 6 ,19,20 ,626 -

Miscellaneous Expenses 5 ,88 ,43 ,509 6,98,68,925
T O T A L 92 ,28 ,80 ,668 75,09,26,321

INTEREST & FINANCE CHARGES :
Interest on Term Loans 9 ,74 ,56 ,578 4,45,52 ,334
Interest on Working Capital 9 ,15 ,43 ,743 7,26,85,484
Interest - Others 5 ,20 ,893 32,80,834
O ther Financial Charges, etc. 66 ,52 ,768 1,51,84 ,060
Net Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Cain)/Loss on Foreign Currency Loans (12 ,59,675) (1,09,72,904)

T O T A L 19,49 ,14 ,307 12,47,29 ,808
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N O T E S  T O  T H E  C O N S O L ID A T E D  A C C O U N T S

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS 
(Contd..)
T. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements relate to Calaxy Surfactants Limited (the Company) and its subsidiary companies. 
The Company and its subsidiaries constitute the Croup.
(a) Basis o f Accounting :

(i) The financial statements o f the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting 
date as o f the Company, i.e. for the year ended 31 st March, 2011.

(ii) The financial statements of the Croup have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards 
in India and other generally accepted accounting principles.

(b) Prin c ip les o f Consolidation :
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the follow ing basis:
(i) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line- by- line 

basis by adding together the book values o f like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating 
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions and resulting unrealised profit as per applicable Accounting  
Standards in India.

(ii) The excess of the Company's portion o f equity as at the dates on which the investments in subsidiary companies 
are made over the cost to the Company o f its investment in subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements 
as "Capital Reserve on Consolidation".

(iii) The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as that adopted 
by the Company for its separate financial statements. Differences if any, in accounting policies have been disclosed 
separately.

(iv) The operations ofthe Company's subsidiaries are considered as non-integral operations forthe purpose of consolidation.
(v) Rate applied for conversion o f foreign currency:

(a) For balance sheet - year end rate of respective currency except for share capital and pre incorporation/acquisition 
reserves which have been converted at the rate prevailing on the date of acquisition of the subsidiaries.

(b) For profit and loss in case o f subsidiaries held throughout the year - average rate for the year.
(c) For profit and loss in case of subsidiaries held for part o f the year - average rate for the period during which 

the Company was a subsidiary.
(vi) Exchange differences arising on consolidation are recognised in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

(c) Particulars o f suhsidiaries :
Name of the Company Country of Incorporation Percentage o f Voting power

Calaxy Chemicals Inc.
Calaxy Holdings (Mauritius) Ltd. 
Calaxy Chemicals (Egypt) S.A.E. 
Rainbow Holdings CmbH  
Tri-K Industries Inc.
Maybrook Inc.

as at 3T 'M arch, 2011
U.S.A. 100%
Mauritius 100%
Egypt 100%
Cermany 100%
U.S.A. 100%
U.S.A. 100%

(i) Accounting Convention :
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles to comply 
in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and 
the relevant provisions o fthe Companies Act, 1956. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical 
cost convention, on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and 
are consistent w ith those used in the previous year.
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(ii) U seof Estimates:
The preparation o fthe  financial statements in conformity w ith the generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. 
Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge o f current events and actions, actual results 
could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively and revised, in 
current and future periods.

(b) Revenue Recognition :
Revenue/Income and Cost/Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual basis as they are earned or incurred, except 
in case o f significant uncertainties.
(i) Sales are recognised when goods are supplied and are recorded net o f sales tax, sales returns and trade discounts.
(ii) Interest income is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate of interest.
(iii) D ividend income on investments is accounted for as and when the right to receive the same is established.

(c) F jxedAssets:
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation or amortisation. The cost of 
fixed assets includes all costs incidental to acquisition or construaion, including taxes, duties (net of CENVAT and set-off), 
cost o f installation and commissioning, interest on specific borrowings obtained for the purposes of acquiring the fixed 
assets and other indirect expenses, incurred up to trial run.

(d) Depreciation on Fixed Assets :
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided at the rates determined on straight line method over the useful life estimated by 
the Management or on the basis o f depreciation rates prescribed under respective domestic laws, whichever is higher. 
Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from/upto the date o f such addition/ 
deletion.
Leasehold Land is amortised over the primary period o f lease.

(e) Valuation o f  Inventories.:
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories is ascertained on the weighted average 
basis and includes, in the case of finished goods and work-in-process, production overheads at pre-determined rates and 
excise duty, where applicable.

(f)
Investments being longterm are stated at cost. Provision is made for dim inution in the value of investments where in the  
opinion of the Board of Directors such diminution is other than temporary. Short term investments are stated at lower of 
cost or market value.

(g) Foreign Currency Translations i
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate o f exchange prevailing on the date o f the transactions.
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted at contracted/year end rates as applicable.
Exchange differences on settlement/conversion, other than in respect of long term monetary items arising after 1 “  April, 2007 
till 3T ‘March, 2011, are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account, except that on consolidation of non-integral foreign 
operations, the assets, liabilities and goodwill arising on acquisition o fthe  Company's overseas operations are translated 
at the exchange rate prevailing on the Balance Sheet date and items of income and expenditure are translated at the average 
exchange rate for the period. Exchange differences arising on consolidation are recognised in the Foreign Exchange Translation 
reserve until the disposal o f the net investment.
The exchange difference in respect of long term monetary items arising after T*April, 2007 till 3T ‘ March, 2011 to the 
extent they relate to acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted to the cost of fixed assets and the balance is accumulated in 
the 'Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account', which is amortised over the balance period 
of long term monetary item; but not later than 3T ‘ March, 2011. Wherever forward contracts are entered into, the premium 
is dealt w ith in the Profit and Loss Account over the period o f the contracts.

(h) Research &  D eve lnpm en t:
Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged to the Profit & Loss Account of the year in which it is 
incurred. Capital expenditure on Research and Development is shown as an addition to relevant Fixed Assets.

(i) Emp loyee B ene fits :
(i) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account of the year in which 
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(j)

(k )

(1)

service is rendered.
(ii) Contribution to defined contribution schemes such as Provident Fund, Family Pension Fund and Superannuation Fund 

are charged to the profit and loss account.
(iii) The Company makes annual contribution to Employees Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Scheme in respect of 

qualifying employees and the same is recognized as an expense in the profit & loss account. Additional liability, if 
any, in respect of gratuity and liability in respect of leave encashment is recognised on the basis of valuation done by 
an independent actuary applying Project Unit Credit Method. The actuarial gain/loss arising during the year is recognized 
in the profit and loss account o f the year.

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of 
such assets up to the date the assets are ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense 
in the year in which they are incurred.
Taxation :
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period as determined in accordance 
with the provisions o f the Income Tax Act, 1961, except for the overseas subsidiaries and jo in t ventures where current 
tax provision is determined based on the local tax laws.
Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference between 
taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more 
subsequent periods.
Earning Per Share :
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the 
weighted average of the number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders by 
the weighted average of the number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all diluted 
potential equity shares.

All identifiable items o f Income and Expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted through "Prior Period 
Adjustment Account".

(n) Im pa irm en t o f Assets :
The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount o f the asset, if such recoverable amount of the 
asset, or recoverable amount o f the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised 
in the Profit and Loss Account. If at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment 
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected atthe recoverable amount and difference 
is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.

(o) P rovision and Contingent L iab ilities :
Provisions are recognised when the Croup has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it 
is probable that a cash outflow w ill be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the Croup has a possible obligation and it is probable that a cash outflow will 
not be required to settle the obligation.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect o f which the likelihood of outflow o f resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

3. Contingent L iab ilities &  C laims not provided fo L i
2010-11

Rupees
2009-10

Rupees
(a) Counter Guarantees given to Banks 4 ,38,10,000 1,62,50,000
(b) Corporate Cuarantee given to bank on behalf o f subsidiary 2,22,95,000 2,24,45,000
(c) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts, but disputed in appeals

- Excise Duty 1,17,516 1,17,516
- Income Tax 1,19,17,345 -
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4. Estimated amount of contracts remaining 
to be executed on CapitalAccounto

2010-2011
Rupees

2009-2010
Rupees

Contracts remaining to be executed (Net o f Advances) 65,67,88,151 19,59,07,363

5. All pre-operative costs directly attributable to new projects undertaken are 
period and are capitalised in the year of completion of project. Capilal work 
balance o f expenditure during construction period as at the respective

accumulated as expenditures during construction 
in progress as at the year end includes the following 
year end:

2010-11
Rupees

2009-10
Rupees

Open ing Balance 4 ,11,25,907 12,50,726
Additions during the Year
Freight & Forwarding 2,95,72 ,614 -

Interest & O ther Finance charges 2,89,20,026 94,68,484
REACH expenses 1,23,80,187 -

Travelling & Conveyance 1,12,19,659 72,04,274
Rent 1,04,19,266 82,98,781
Personnel Cost 63,83 ,374 1,78,849
Legal & Professional Fees 58,49,961 76,61,567
Miscellaneous Expenses 39,38,631 16,82,671
Insurance 30,03,339 40,39,157
Power & Fuel 20,26,033 17,69,410
Rates & Taxes 8,32,104 57,74,040
Water Charges 5,16,110 1,30,572
Security Charges 3,00,813 -

Bank Charges 2,80,245 89,476
Postage & Telephones 2,78,220 20,250
Printing & Stationery 85 ,694 3,887
Subscription, Books & Periodicals 1 7,405 -

Total P re-operative Expenses 15,71,49 ,588 4,75,72,144
Less : Capitalised During the year - 64,46,237
Balance as at the year end 15,71,49,588 4,11,25,907

6. Secured loans include a term loan from a commercial bank, as per the terms of which if the Company continues to be in default 
for a period of 30 days or more from the due date of instalment of principal amounts of the Loan or interest thereon, the Bank 
shall have the right to convert the outstanding loan amount into Equity Shares of the Company at par. Accordingly these 
contingently issuable potential equity shares have been considered for calculation o f diluted earning per share.

7. Earning Per Share:

Particulars 31“  March, 2011 
Rupees

31“  March, 2010 
Rupees

Profit after tax 64,69,47 ,855 37,89,65,201
The weighted average no. of equity shares for Basic EPS 1,77,27,376 1,71,29,020
Nominal Value o f Equity Shares Rs.10/- Rs.10/-
Earning Per Share (Basic) 36 .49 22.12
Profit after tax for Basic EPS 64,69 ,47 ,855 37,89,65,201
Add: Interest cost on Term loan (net of taxes) 36,41 ,096 -

Profit after tax for D iluted EPS 65,05,88,951 37,89,65,201
The weighted average no. o f equity shares for Basic EPS 1,77,27,376 1,71,29,020
Add: Adjustments for conversion of Term loan (nos.) 59,58,904 12,73,973
The weighted average no. o f equity shares for Diluted EPS 2,36,86,280 1,84,02,993
Earning Per Share (Diluted) 27 .47 20.59
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a.

b.

Primary Segment: Business Segment 
The Company is engaged in the manufacture of speciality chemicals which is considered as the only business segment. 
Secondary Segment : Ceographical Segment

31“  March 31“ March
Segment Revenues 2011 2010

Rupees Rupees
A  Revenues w ith in India 406,43,10 ,005 281,37,14,767
B. Revenues outside India 521 ,07 ,50 ,899 362,88,59,752

Total 927 ,42 ,12 ,764 644,25,74,519

9. Related Parties D isclosures:
a] Names o f the Related Parties and nature o f re lationsh ip :
Key management personnel [W hole-tim e D irectors] and th e ir relatives:
Key Management Personnel 
[W ho le -tim e D irectors]

Relatives o f Key Management Personnel

Mr. U. Shekhar Mrs. Lakshmy Shekhar, W ife 
Mr. Karthik Shekhar, Son 
Ms. Nandini Shekhar, Daughter

Mr. S. R. Shanbhag Mrs. Vandana Shanbhag, W ife 
Ms. Sneha Shanbhag, Daughter 
Mr. Pranav Shanbhag, Son

Mr. C. Ramakrishnan Mrs. layashree Ramakrishnan, W ife 
Mr. Am it Ramakrishnan, Son 
Mr. Akaash Ramakrishnan, Son

Mr. U. K. Kamat Mrs. Dhanvanti Kamat, W ife  
Mr. Paresh Kamat, Son 
Ms. Mallika Kamat, Daughter

Entities over wh ich key management personnel [whole-tim e directors] are able to  exercise s ignificant influence:
Calaxy Emulsifiers Private Limited 
Calaxy Finsec Private Limited 
Osmania Traders Private Limited 
Calaxy Chemicals [Partnership Firm]
Calaxy Estates & Holdings [Partnership Firm]
Calaxy Investments [Partnership Firm]
Shubh Estates & Properties [Partnership Firm]
Calaxy Surfactants Limited -  Employees' Welfare Trust
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b] The fo llow ing  transactions were carried ou t w ith  related parties in the o rd ina ry course o f business
P articu la rs Entities w h ere  Key 

M a n a g e m e n t  

P erson nel can  
exercise significant 

in flu e n c e

Key M a n a g e m e n t  

P ersonnel
R elatives o f  Key  

M a n a g e m e n t  

P ersonnel

2010-11 20 09 -1 0 2010-11 20 09 -1 0 2010-11 2009-10
1 Share Capital

Share Application Money Received/ Shares allotted
Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees' Welfare Trust 
U.K. Kamat

26383500
3410000

2 Unsecured Loans

U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Sneha Shanbhag 
Others

10000000 16500000
3000000

1625000
3000000
5060000

U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Nandini Shekhar 
Others

c Loans/ Fixed Deposits as at 31st March.2011 
U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Others 

3 Loans & Advances

480000
3100000

650000

38100000
3000000
100000

3110576
2813461

11230

28580000
6100000
750000 11955000

1100000
700000

10330000

Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees' 
Welfare Trust 25823425

Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees' 
Welfare Trust 

c Baiance as at vear end
Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees' 
Welfare Trust

10023425

15800000 25823425
4 Interest accrued but not due

U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Others

3410920
544511

1176784
218246

1097682 422898
5 Expenditure

a Manager/a/ Remuneration 
U. Shekhar 
C. Ramakrishnan 
S. R. Shanbhag 
U.K.Kamat

10609135
9760600
9789555
9760600

8854015
8651151
8627233
8607150

U. Shekhar 
S. R. Shanbhag 
Others

3510134
372372
10416

2537117
568896
11000 1314574 613013

6 Dividend paid
Galaxy Chemicals 
Galaxy Emulsifiers FVt. Ltd.
Galaxy Surfactants Limited - Employees'
Welfare Trust
U. Shekhar
S. R. Shanbhag
Others

22810160
1357500

712500

22599080
1357500

206580

10283600
10145210

6080270

10283600
10170210
5950270 5068430 5048430
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10. Figures perta in ing to  the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to  bring them in line w ith the 
Company's financia l statements.

11. Previous year's figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary, to  conform  to  th is year's classification.

As per our Report attached.
For P.D. Kunte &  CO. For and on beha lf o f the Board
Chartered Accountants
D.P. SAPRE U. SHEKHAR S.R. SHANBHAG G. RAMAKRISHNAN
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director D irector
Mem No 40740 Home & Personal Care (Ciobal)

U. K. KAMAT G. KAMATH
Executive D irector - Finance Head - Resource Mobilisation & Utilisation

Process & Company Secretary
Mum bai
Date: July 08, 2011



C O N S O L ID A T E D  C A S H  F L O W
STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2011
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2009-10
Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activity
Profit before Tax and Extraordinary it(

; Activities
/ items

Adjustments for:
Add;
Depreciation 
Minority interest 
Interest paid
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Assets 
Less :
Dividend Income 
Interest Income
Profit on sale of subsidiary credited to P&L Account 
Prior Year Tax Adjustments
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 
Working Capital Changes
Inventories
Trade & Other Receivables 
Other Advances 
Current Liabiiities 
Other Liabilities
Cash generated from Operations
Income Taxes Paid
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (a)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Capital Expenditure
Sale of Fixed Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries
Remission on Disposal of Subsidiary
Investment Others
Dividend Income
Interest Income
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (b)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Share Issue Expenses
Issue of Equity Shares
Net Secured Borrowings
Sales Tax Deferrals / MIDC Incentives
Fixed Deposits
Repayment of Loans from Directors 
Receipt/ (Repayments) of Loan from Others 
Foreign Currency Translation Difference 
Interest & Finance Charges 
Equity Dividend & Dividend Tax thereon
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (c )
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (a) + (b) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 
Addition on Acquisition of Subsidiary 
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Cain/ (Loss)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance
Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Am ount
Rupees

Am ount
Rupees

Amount
Rupees

Amount
Rupees

81,19,02,765 52,35,91,418

22,58,44,631 17,65,44,710
- 1,84,88,620

19,49,14,307 12,47,29,808
42,60,833 42,50,19,771 2,21,394 31,99,84,532

(66,840) (87,500)
(6,57,587) (92,57,376)

- (10,42,610)
(10,33,274) (17,57,701) 2,50,105 (1,01,37,381)

123,51,64,835 83,34,38,569

(61,97,22,838) 1,39,90,025
(59,08,09,492) 8,49,57,722
(15,02,45,761) (5,81,61,468)

71,98,49,385 15,36,35,228
1,15,09,527 (62,94,19,179) 87,83,711 20,32,05,218

60,57,45,656 103,66,43,787
(17,24,19,185) (11,04,45,545)

43,33,26,471 92,61,98,242

(116,90,25,940) (77,39,64,929)
4,19,892 8,84,076

- (18,82,83,157)
- 10,42,610
- (25,000)

66,840 87,500
6,57,587 92,57,376

(98,62,216) (2,89,39,753)
(117.77.43.837) (97.99.41,277)

(1,47,87,735) .
- 6,60,00,000

92,96,80,596 21,68,14,598
(50,48,224) (67,36,574)
3,60,65,000 10,51,75,000
(11,30,000) (59,35,267)
(25,42,499) 1,27,14,370

48,750 18,68,750
(19,49,14,307) (12,47,29,808)
(10,34,61,065) (10,01,90,868)

64.39.10.516 16,49,80,201
(c) (10,05,06,850) 11,12,37,167

18,56,22,393 6,41,28,658
- 1,02,56,568

3,01,00,651 11,03,26,111
5,50,14,892 8,51,15,543 7,52,96,282 18,56,22,393

(10,05,06,850) 11,12,37,167
As per our Report attached. 
For P.D. Kunte & CO.
Chartered Accountants
D. P. SAPRE
Partner
Mem No 40740

U .S H E K H A R
Managing Director

U. K. KAMAT
Executive Director - Finance

For and on behalf of the Board

S. R. SHANBHAG
Whoie-Time Director G. RAM AKRISHNAN

Director
Fiome & Personal Care (Giobal)

G. KAMATH
Head - Resource Mobilisation & Utilisation 
Process & Company Secretary



F IN A N C IA L  I N F O R M A T IO N  O F  S U B S ID IA R Y  C O M P A N IF S
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2011

Sr

No

Name of Subsidiary Company Reporting

Currency

Capital Reserves* Total

Assets

Total

Liabilities

Total 

Investments 

(Other than in 

Subsidiaries)

Turnover/

Total

Income

Profit

Before

Taxation

Provision 

for Taxation

@

Profit After 

Taxation

Proposed

Dividend

Country

1 Galaxy Chemicals Inc. INR 5351 230397 315697 315697 93193 (6998579) (10612) (7009191)

USA

USD 120 5167 7080 7080 2090 (156954) (238) (157192)

2 Galaxy Holdings 
(Mauritius) Ltd.

INR 619323887 16272719 636124507 636124507 14116525 12306439 206764 12099675

Mauritius

USD 13889300 364941 14266080 14266080 316585 275991 4637 271354

3 Galaxy Chemicals 
(Egypt) SAE.

INR 403539500 842284945 842284945 ■ - -
Egypt

USD 9050000 18889548 18889548 - -

4 Rainbow Holdings GmbH INR 1584953 (42231567) 62738506 62738506 (9768443) - (9768443)
Germany

EURO 25000 (666133) 989596 989596 (154081) - (154081)

5 Tri-K Industries Inc. INR 44590 235457183 369069468 369069468 784071730 35580581 13136927 22443638
USA

USD 1000 5280493 8276956 8276956 17584026 797950 294616 503333

6 Maybrook Inc. INR 668850 50402262 69245372 69245372 121677626 26704594 9122401 17582194
USA

USD 15000 1130349 1552935 1552935 2728810 598892 204584 394308

The Indian rupee equivalents o f the  figures given in fore ign currencies in the accounts o fth e  subsidiary com panies, have been given based on the exchange rates as on M arch 

31, 2011 w h ich  are :1 USD =  Rs.44.59 :1  EURO =  Rs. 63.3981

* Reserves are net of accumulated losses, if any 

@ Provision for Taxation includes Prior Period Tax Adjustments
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GALAXY SURFACTANTS LIMITED
Registered Office : C -49/2, TTC Industrial Area, Pawne, Navi M um ba i-400 703.

ATTENDANCE SL/P

I hereby record my presence at the TWENTY FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING o f the Company at the Registered 
O ffic e  o f the  Com pany a t C -49 /2 , TTC Indus tria l A rea, Pawne, Navi M um ba i 400  703 at 3 .00  p .m . on F riday, the  
g*" September, 2011.

N am e : _______________________________________________________

--------------------------------------- F o l io N o . /D P ID * :____________________________________________
Signature o f the Attending
Shareholder/Proxy C lient ID * :____________________________________________________

N O TE S : No. o f Shares Held :
(1) Shareholder/Proxyholder desiring to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to  the meeting 

and hand over at the entrance duly signed.
(2) Shareholder/Proxyholder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his copy o f the notice for reference at 

the meeting.
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------(c u t here )-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

GALAXY SURFACTANTS LIMITED
Registered Office : C -49/2, TTC Industrial Area, Pawne, Navi M um ba i-400 703.

PR O X YF O RM

I/W e__________________________________________________of_____________________________________________ in the district of

 being a Shareholder /  Shareholders of the above-named company, hereby a p p o in t____________

of in the district of

or failing him /her of

in the district of, as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the TWENTY FIFTH Annua l G enera l M ee tin g  o f the Company, to  be held at the Registered O ffice  o f the Company at 
C-49/2, TTC Industrial Area, Pawne, Navi Mumbai-400 703 on Friday, the 9 * September, 2011 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed th is  day o f______________________________ 2011.
A ffix

Regd. Folio no. /  DP ID* :------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Revenue
Client ID * :

Stamp

Applicable for investors holding shares in dematerialised form.
I Signature o f Member(s) I

NOTE : The Proxy form must be returned so as to reach the Registered Office of the Company at C-49/2, TTC Industrial Area, 
Pawne, Navi Mumbai - 400 703 not later than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the tim e for holding the aforesaid 
meeting.



G a l a x y  S u r f a c t a n t s  L td .

Corporate Office:
C- 4 9 / 2 ,  TTC Industrial Area, Pawne, Navi Mumbai - 400 703, India.

Ph: +91 - 22 - 65134444 / 27616666 Fax: +91 - 22 - 27615883 / 27615886 
Email: galaxy@galaxysurfactants.com Website: www.galaxysurfactants.com

mailto:galaxy@galaxysurfactants.com
http://www.galaxysurfactants.com

